

Novel Strategies to Fight Child Sexual Exploitation and Human Trafficking Crimes and Protect their Victims H2020 – 101021801

www.heroes-fct.eu

D10.5 Dissemination Plan

Authors: Jesús Ángel Alonso (UCM), Luis Alberto Martínez Hernández (UCM), Sara Vanesa Orozco Narvaez (UCM), Sandra Pérez Arteaga (UCM), Daniel Povedano Alvarez (UCM), Ana Lucila Sandoval Orozco (UCM), María Mercedes Rodríguez Paredes (UCM), Luis Javier García Villalba (UCM),

Contributors: All Partners

| Deliverable nature | R |
|---------------------|------------|
| Dissemination level | PU |
| Version | 1.0 |
| Date | 30/11/2022 |



This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 101021801

Document Information

| Project Acronym | HEROES |
|---------------------|--|
| Project Title | Novel Strategies to Fight Child Sexual Exploitation and Human Trafficking Crimes and Protect their Victims – HEROES |
| Grant Agreement No. | 101021801 |
| Project URL | www.heroes-fct.eu |
| EU Project Officer | Markus Walter |

| Deliverable | Number | D10.5 | Title | Dissemin | nation pla | n - V1 |
|------------------|-----------------|-------------|--------|------------|------------|-------------------------------|
| Work Package | Number | WP10 | Title | Dissemir | nation, co | mmunication, and exploitation |
| Date of Delivery | Contractual M12 | | M12 | | Actual | M12 |
| Status | Version 0 | Version 0.1 | | | Draft | |
| Nature | R | | Dissem | ination le | evel | PU |

| Responsible partner | Name | Luis Javier García Villalba | E-mail | Javierv@ucm.es | |
|-----------------------|--|-----------------------------|--------|----------------|--|
| | Partner | UCM | Phone | +34 913947638 | |
| Contributing partners | All Partners | | | | |
| Reviewers | Zoe Colpaert (ICMEC CH) and Mafalda Valério (APAV) | | | | |
| Security Approval | Julio Hern | andez-Castro (UNIKENT) | | | |

Abstract (for dissemination)

This deliverable presents the dissemination activities of the HEROES project where the progress is shown, among which the templates used in the documents, website, publications made by the members of the consortium, events, news and social networks related to the project stand out.

Keywords

Activities of Dissemination, H2020, HEROES

Disclaimer:

This document contains information that is treated as confidential and proprietary by the HEROES Consortium. Neither this document nor the information contained herein shall be used, duplicated, or communicated by any means to any third party, in whole or in parts, except with prior written consent of the HEROES Consortium.



This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No. 101021801. The opinions expressed and arguments employed herein do not necessarily reflect the official views

of the funding body.



Version History

| Version | Date | Change Editor | Changes |
|---------|------------|---|------------------------|
| 0.1 | 21/10/2022 | Luis Javier Garcia Villalba, Sandra Pérez Arteaga | Initial draft |
| 0.2 | 01/11/2022 | María Mercedes Rodríguez Paredes, Ana Lucila Sandoval Orozco (UCM) | First Draft for review |
| 0.4 | 28/11/2022 | Zoe Colpaert (ICMEC CH), Mafalda Valério (APAV) | Internal review |
| 0.5 | 29/11/2022 | Julio Hernández Castro (UNIKENT) | Security review |
| 1.0 | 30/11/2022 | Luis Javier García Villalba (UCM) | Final version |



Table of Contents

| | f Figures | |
|--------|---|----|
| | f Tables | |
| | eviations | |
| 1. | Introduction | |
| 2. | Key concepts and objectives | |
| 2.1. | Objectives | |
| 2.2. | Physical presence | |
| 2.3. | Dissemination | |
| 2.4. | Dissemination Activities | |
| 2.5. | Roadmap | |
| 2.6. | Roles and Responsibilities | |
| 3. | Managing communication activities | |
| 3.1. | Project Templates | |
| 3.2. | Collaboration with other EU-Projects | |
| 3.3. | Consortium Partners Contribution | 8 |
| 3.4. | Deliverables | 8 |
| 3.5. | Publications | 9 |
| 3.6. | Scientific Publications | 9 |
| 3.7. | Events and Conferences | 16 |
| 3.8. | News | 33 |
| 3.9. | Website | 34 |
| 3.10. | HEROES Visual Identity | 39 |
| 3.10.1 | Project Logo | 40 |
| 3.10.2 | 2. Social Media | 41 |
| 3.10.3 | Email | 44 |
| 3.11. | Flyer/ Factsheet/ Newsletter | 44 |
| 3.11.1 | . Flyer | 44 |
| 3.11.2 | Newsletter | 45 |
| 3.11.3 | . Roll-Up | 45 |
| 3.11.4 | Poster | 46 |
| 3.12. | Dissemination Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) | |
| 3.13. | Dissemination Guidelines | 50 |



List of Figures

| F ' | | - |
|------------|---|------|
| Figure | 1: Presentation template | 5 |
| | 2: Documents and deliverables template. | |
| | 3: Meeting template | |
| Figure | 4: Minutes template. | 7 |
| Figure | 5: Press release El País. | . 33 |
| Figure | 6: Publication on the main page of the UCM. | . 33 |
| Figure | 7: Radio 5 interview. | . 34 |
| Figure | 8: Publication in page of the UCM. | . 34 |
| | 9: Home page. | |
| 0 | 10: Project page. | |
| Figure | 11: Consortium page | .37 |
| Figure | 12: Sister Projects. | .37 |
| Figure | 13: News page | . 38 |
| Figure | 14: Contact page. | . 39 |
| Figure | 15: Document HEROES Visual Identity. | .40 |
| Figure | 16: Logo letters design. | .41 |
| Figure | 17: Letter design. | .41 |
| | 18: Logo HEROES. | |
| | 19: Palette colors. | |
| Figure | 20: HEROES Twitter | .42 |
| Figure | 21: HEROES Twitter home page. | .43 |
| | 22: HEROES LinkedIn | |
| Figure | 23: Flayer | .44 |
| Figure | 24: Newsletter. | .45 |
| Figure | 25: HEROES Roll-Up. | .46 |
| | 26: Poster template 1. | |
| | 27: Poster template 2. | |
| | 28: Poster eurocrim 2022 | |
| 0 | | |



List of Tables

| Table 1: List of Scientific Publications. | 10 |
|--|----|
| Table 2: List of Dissemination Events. | 17 |
| Table 3: List of Organised Events. | 23 |
| Table 4: List of Other Dissemination Events. | 25 |
| | |



Abbreviations

| CA | Consortium Agreement |
|----------|---|
| CSA/CSE: | Child Sexual Exploitation and Abuse |
| CSOs: | Civil Society Organization |
| D | Deliverable |
| DMS | Data Management Strategy |
| DMP | Data Management Plan |
| DoA | Description of the Action, Annex 1 of the Grant Agreement |
| GA | Grant Agreement |
| М | Month |
| THB: | Trafficking in Human Beings |
| Т | Task |
| TIC: | Technology of the Information and Communication |
| THB: | Trafficking in Human Beings |
| WP | Work Package |



1. Introduction

Human trafficking (THB) and child sexual abuse and exploitation (CSA/CSE) are two major problems in our society. Inadvertently, new information and communication technologies (ICTs) have provided a space for these problems to develop and take on new forms, compounded by the lockdown caused by the COVID-19 pandemic among other factors. At the same time, the technical and legal tools available to stakeholders that prevent, investigate, and assist victims, such as law enforcement agencies (LEAs), prosecutors, judges, and civil society organizations (CSOs) fail to keep pace with criminals using new technologies to continue their abhorrent acts. In addition, assistance to victims of THB and CSA/CSE is often limited by a lack of coordination between these stakeholders. In this regard, there is a clear and vital need for joint working methodologies and the development of new strategies to address and assist victims. Moreover, due to the crossborder nature of these crimes, the harmonization of the legal frameworks of each of the affected countries is necessary to create bridges of communication and coordination among all stakeholders in order to help victims and reduce the occurrence of these horrific crimes. To address these challenges, the HEROES project presents an ambitious, interdisciplinary, international, and victim-centred approach. The project is structured as a comprehensive solution that encompasses three main components: Prevention, Investigation and Victim Assistance. Through these components, our solution aims to establish a coordinated contribution with LEAs by developing an appropriate, victim-centred approach that is able to address specific needs and provide protection. The main objective of the HEROES project is to use technology to improve the way help and support can be provided to victims of THB and CSA/CSE. In addition, the HEROES project will establish innovative new strategies that, in the short, medium, and long term, will improve the way LEAs and CSOs conduct criminal investigations, help rescued victims and prevent the occurrence of these crimes.



2. Key concepts and objectives

2.1. Objectives

HEROES is an ambitious, multidisciplinary and international project with a victim-centred approach, the main objective of which is to strengthen and enhance the coordinated response of LEAs and other stakeholders in relation to the prevention, investigation and assistance to victims of THB and CSA/CSE crime. To this end, the HEROES project will adopt best practices to comply with relevant legislation related to the processing and exchange of digital evidence.

The main goal is to use technology to improve the way in which assistance and support can be provided to victims of Trafficking of Human Beings (THB) and Child Sexual Abuse and Exploitation (CSA/CSE).

Prevention:

- To provide a variety of preventive measures to reduce THB and CSA/CSE crimes.
- To reduce the demand of services that may be provided by victims in both legal and illegal sectors.
- To reduce the risk of (re-)offending by better understanding the behaviour of abusers and potential abusers.

Investigation:

- To analyse possible involvement of organised crime groups implicated in THB and CSA/CSE in other crimes.
- To develop new approaches to investigate THB and CSA/CSE crimes.
- To address new threats of child abuse and coercion and extortion of victims that have escalated in the last years.
- To provide Law Enforcement Agents with effective means to detect, investigate and bring down open and hidden peer-to-peer networks and websites.

Victim Assistance:

- To develop a set of holistic measures to ensure adequate THB and CSA/CSE victims' protection and assistance.
- To develop new approaches to investigate trafficking of human beings and CSA/CSE crimes.
- To develop new approaches to mitigate the impact on victims of THB and CSA/CSE and to reduce revictimisation in the short and long term.

2.2.Physical presence

During the development of the HEROES project, the consortium members have participated in events in which information is distributed and adapted to the types of events based on the specific objectives and interests of the HEROES project. There are currently several means of disseminating the project depending on the type of event in which partners are participating. For public events, the information is presented using a poster (see Figure 25) and a flyer (Figure 22), in which the central objectives of HEROES are broadly detailed, as well as the research results derived from the project. At press conferences and press releases: HEROES partners must be proactive in providing information about the benefits of the solution and the development phase of the project.

During the development of the HEROES project, the following dissemination activities are being carried out:

- Articles (scientific and academic).
- Publications (scientific and academic).
- Press releases.

• Publications in magazines and conferences.

These dissemination actions must be strengthened in the next period, based on the first results of the project. Partners will be continually encouraged to proactively communicate the project's ambitions and impact on society (considering all ethics and safety procedures currently in place in the context of project governance).

The results are also disseminated to the academic community through scientific articles, posters, etc. Presentations are planned at different events targeting relevant stakeholders.

2.3. Dissemination

Dissemination activities will be defined as those described in Article 29 of the Grant Agreement and will involve disseminating the project results and outputs by 'disclosing them to the public by appropriate means (other than those resulting from protecting and exploiting the results), including in scientific publications (in any medium)'.

The dissemination objectives are:

- To make the knowledge, results, and outputs developed by HEROES available to the widest possible audience.
- To obtain feedback from relevant stakeholders.
- To enhance the project exploitation potential.

2.4. Dissemination Activities

Dissemination activities aim to establish critical mass and commitment from different stakeholders. Results from project activities will be disseminated to the widest possible community through various channels and instruments, taking into account the restrictions the project has in disseminating information related to Classified Information. External participation and knowledge sharing will be encouraged through networking activities and events aimed at increasing the impact potential and enriching the scientific and industry contribution to the project.

The HEROES dissemination strategy is divided into communication and internal and external dissemination. Internal communication and dissemination allow HEROES consortium members to participate in each project activity and share their knowledge and experiences. Internal communication takes place through teleconferences, emails, and regular physical meetings. Shared documents are stored in a repository managed by the consortium members, always ensuring access and security for all partners.

The goals of the external dissemination strategy are:

- Prepare overall strategy for dissemination activities.
- Planning of dissemination activities, including key messages and channels to a diverse set of stakeholders.
- Create a corporative image of the project.
- Establish, update and maintain the project website.
- Use social networking tools.
- Prepare articles, scientific publications, newsletters, press releases and brochures/flyers.
- Prepare video release.
- Participate in events.

2.5. Roadmap

The activity of Dissemination, Exploitation and Communication is divided into a series of phases:

- Planning phase (M1 M4): official launch of the project, development of the project website; development of the project communications manual; development of strategies for the dissemination, exploitation, and communication of projects; development of communication tools; Social media posts and interactions to build a network of followers.
- Awareness phase (M4 M24): Publications on social networks; first contacts with relevant stakeholder groups; distribution of project flyers/promotional materials at relevant events; further development and updates on the project website and communication tools; further development and refinement of dissemination, exploitation, and communication strategies; monitoring and evaluation of dissemination and communication activity; progress and monitoring of operating activity.
- Preliminary results and ongoing activity (M25 M34): improved project visibility; ongoing engagement with relevant stakeholder groups; wide public dissemination of project results and outputs; analysis and evaluation of the impact and success of dissemination, communication, and exploitation activities against key performance indicators; further improvement of dissemination, exploitation and communication strategies.
- Final results and exploitation (M30 M36): wide public dissemination of the results and final products of the project; analysis and evaluation of the impact and success of communication and exploitation dissemination activities against key performance indicators; preparation of final exploitation and dissemination plans; establishment of the post-project impact committee.
- Post-project phase (2 years after the project): Analysis and evaluation of the impact and success of the exploitation and dissemination activity. At the beginning of the project, there will be no results or products available, so the strategy will focus on communication activities aimed at increasing knowledge of the project among relevant target audiences. These activities will serve to establish a community of stakeholders who are aware of the project and can be the subject of more outreach and exploitation activities as the project progresses. These initial activities can also be a useful channel through which participants could be recruited for both the project user requirements gathering phase and testing.

2.6. Roles and Responsibilities

The pooling of competencies and experiences of each member of the consortium in the fundamental tasks of HEROES facilitates the adoption of the project results. Details of the project's complementary tasks, deliverables, and work packages are detailed in the "Grant Agreement-101021801-HEROES.pdf" document.

3. Managing communication activities

As anticipated, dissemination will be carried out following 3 main strategies:

- The Paper Strategy (project postcard, leaflets, press releases, scientific papers)
- The Multimedia Strategy (project website, social media, news, video production, etc.)
- The Event Strategy (training weeks, key thematic conferences, forums, events, final workshop, etc.)

3.1.Project Templates

HERDES

Once the project logo has been designed, the templates for the different types of documents (doc, pptx) were developed. Templates allow the consortium to represent and present the project evenly. All templates are available to project partners and additional templates will be added if necessary.

The available templates are listed below:

- General deliverable and document template (Microsoft Word).
- Meeting template (agenda, meeting minutes) (Microsoft Word).
- Presentation template (Microsoft PowerPoint).
- Project and monthly work package Status template.
- HEROES logos (small, large, vector).

With these templates we aim to gather project information for transmission to and from the whole consortium, thus enabling identification in a very simple manner.

The HEROES presentation template is shown in Figure 1, which is used to show reports in a dynamic way, exposing state-of-the-art, scope, and progress of HEROES to groups of interest.

| | HERZES | Haz clic para agregar título |
|------------------------|---|---|
| | | > Haz elie para agregar texto |
| | Title of the presentation | |
| Novel Strategies to | The of the presentation | |
| Fight Child Sexual | Click to Name of the Speaker and | |
| Exploitation and Human | Organisation | |
| Trafficking Crimes and | This project has received funding from the European | |
| Protect their Victims | Inis project nas received runding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No. 101021801 | This project has received fanding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation grogramme under grant agreement No 101021801 3 |

Figure 1: Presentation template.

Figure 2 shows the document and deliverables template, which is used to systematise and present information of the HEROES project and its dissemination within the partnership.



| Document Information Project Acronym HEROES Project Acronym HEROES Project Title Novel Strategies to Fight Child Sexual Exploitation and Human Trafficking Crimes and Protect their Victims H2020 – 101021801 www.heroes-fct.eu Version X.X Dete of Delivery Contractual XX Actual XX Nature X Nature X Dissemination level XX Nature X Dissemination level XX | ns – HEROES XX XX | their Victims – I | el Strategies to Fi les and Protect th 21801 7.heroes-fct.eu | le Nov Crin | HERGES |
|--|-------------------------|-------------------|---|----------------|--|
| Crimes and Protect their Victims – HEROES Grant Agreement No. 101021801 Project URL www.herose-fct.cu EU Project Officer Varwa herose-fct.cu Beliverable Number XX Title XX Work Package Number XX Bate of Delivery Contractual XX Status Version X.X Itile XX Nature X Itile XX Responsible partner Name XX E-mail XX | ns – HEROES XX XX | their Victims – I | es and Protect th 21801 /.heroes-fct.eu | Crin | |
| Novel Strategies to Fight Child Sexual Exploitation and Human Trafficking Crimes and Protect their Victims H2020 – 101021801 Number XX Title XX Number Number XX Title XX XX Nature X Title XX XX Nature X Dissemination XX Nature X Dissemination XX Responsible partner Name XX E-mail XX | xx | Title XX | .heroes-fct.eu | ement No. 1010 | |
| Novel Strategies to Fight Child Sexual Exploitation and Human Trafficking Crimes and Protect their Victims H2020 - 101021801 www.heroes-fct.eu Number XX Title XX Deliverable Number XX Title XX Date of Delivery Contractual XX Actual XX Nature X Deal Deal Deal Nature X Dissemination level XX Responsible partner Name XX E-mail XX | xx | Title XX | | | |
| Novel Strategies to Fight Child Sexual Exploitation and Human Trafficking Crimes and Protect their Victims H2020 – 101021801 www.heroes-fct.eu Responsible partner X Title XX Title XX - Actual XX Nature X Draft Dissemination level XX Responsible partner X - Dissemination level XX | xx | Title XX | 1 | L www | |
| Novel Strategies to Fight Child Sexual Exploitation and Human Trafficking Crimes and Protect their Victims H2020 - 101021801 Work Package Number XX Title XX Mature Version X.X Version X.X Version X.X Data Nature Nature XX Data Responsible partner Name XX Version X.X Version X.X E-mail XX | xx | Title XX | | Officer XXX | |
| Novel Strategies to Fight Child Sexual Exploitation and Human Trafficking Crimes and Protect their Victims H2020 - 101021801 Work Package Numbe XX Title XX Nature Version X.X Version X.X Data to Delivery Darkt XX Nature XX Image: Nature XX Responsible partner Name XX Version X.X E-mail XX | xx | THE JUI | ber XX | Nur | |
| Date of Delivery Contractual XX Actual XX Date of Delivery Contractual XX Actual XX Mate of Delivery Contractual XX Actual XX Nature X Dissemination level XX Responsible partner Name XX E-mail XX | | Tide VV | | | |
| H2020 - 101021801 Status Version X.X Draft www.heroes-fct.eu Nature X Dissemination level XX Responsible partner Name XX E-mail XX | | _ | | | Human Trafficking Crimes and Protect their Victims |
| Nature X Dissemination level XX Responsible partner Name XX E-mail XX Partner XX Phone XX | | | | | H2020 - 101021801 |
| www.heroes-fct.eu Responsible partner Name XX E-mail XX Partner XX Phone XX | | Disseminatio | | | |
| Responsible partner Partner XX Phone XX | | Distiniatio | | | www.heroes-fct.eu |
| Partner XX Phone XX | E-mail XX | | e XX | Nan | |
| Contributing partners XX | Phone XX | | ner XX | | |
| Contributing particles AX | I | | | ng partners XX | |
| Reviewers XXXXXXXX | | | xxxxx | XXX | |
| XXXX. XXXXXX Security Approval XXXX | | | x | oproval XX2 | XXX. XXXXX |
| Authors: | | | | | |
| Contributors: Keywords XXX | | | | | Contributors: |

Figure 2: Documents and deliverables template.

HEROES' meetings templates (Figures 3 and 4), in their turn, include i. the agenda template with the topics to be addressed during meetings (Figure 3); ii. Template for minutes, which allows for keeping a record of each of the ideas presented, the agreements that were reached during the meeting and the notes for future meetings.

| Ŀ | IERZES | | | | Agenda — Consortium Meeting Day 2 – Thursday, 9th June 20 | |
|--------------------------|---|-----------------|-------|----------|--|--|
| | ROES' Consortium Meet Escha Lugar | | | Time | Item | Responsible |
| enue | Local Conta | ct | | | | |
| Eacultz.of L 3333. | Emai Emai | le: : : | | | | |
| All meeting participant: | are kindly requested to register: https://forms.gle/lab Day 1 – Wednesday, 8th June 2022 | 4FwwtRW138ztuv8 | | - | | |
| Time | Item | Responsible | | | | |
| XX XX | | | | | Day 3 – Friday, 10th June 202 | 2 |
| | | | | Time | Item | Responsible |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | - | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | Note: | | I | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | This pro | ject has received funding from European Union Horizon 2020 Program | ne under grant agreement no 101021801. |

Figure 3: Meeting template.



| IERŻES | | HER | 23 | | Conversion 200 |
|--|-----------|----------------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------|-----------------------|
| Consortium Meeting | g Minutes | Surname, Name | Partner | June 8th | June June 9th 10th |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| HEROES' Minutes | | | | | |
| HEROES' Consortium Meeting | | | | | |
| HEROES Consolitum Accung | | | | | |
| | | | Objectives | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| GENERAL DATA | | | Meeting Agenda Day 1 - Wednese | lay, 8th June 2022 | |
| | | Time | Item | | Responsibl |
| | | | | | _ |
| Meeting title HEROES Meeting start time | _ | | | | |
| Meeting staft time Meeting end time | | | | | |
| Platform | _ | | | | |
| ID. of meeting | | Minutes of the Me | eting | | |
| Host | | | DAY 1 - 00/00/0 | 000 | |
| Location | | | | | |
| Date of redaction Number of participants | | 1. welcome and | d all partners presentations. | | |
| Number of partners | | | | | |
| | | 2. WP1 - Project | ct Management | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | 3. WP2 - Bes Definition | t-Practices Specifications, 1 | Requirements a | nd Use Case |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |

Figure 4: Minutes template.

3.2.Collaboration with other EU-Projects

HEROES, in order to increase the scope of dissemination, has established collaboration with other EU projects. Up until now, the project has collaborated with the following:

- **RAYUELA**: Empowering and education young people about the internet by playing. It studies the human factors that lead to criminality and implements training programs for youth and children. Was created according to the basic mission of the project, to empower and educate young people (children and teenagers primarily) in the benefits, risks and threats intrinsically linked to the use of the Internet by playing, thus preventing and mitigating cybercriminal behaviour, (https://www.rayuela-h2020.eu/about-us/).
- **CC-Driver**: Researching cyber criminality to design new methods to prevent, investigate, and mitigate cybercriminal behaviour. Study the human factors responsible for youth cybercrime and computer hacking among adolescents. The findings will help the development of mitigation and deterrence strategies. The project will investigate "cybercrime as a service" to design policy models to combat online cybercrime and develop an online self-assessment analytic tool for young people designed to understand cybercriminal behaviour and generate positive pathways, (https://www.ccdriver-h2020.com/).
- **INSPECTr**: Intelligence network and secure platform for evidence correlation and transfer. The principal objective of INSPECTr will be to develop a shared intelligent platform and a novel process for gathering, analysing, prioritising, and presenting key data to help in the prediction, detection, and management of crime in support of multiple agencies at local, national, and international level, (https://inspectr-project.eu/).
- AIDA: Artificial intelligence and advanced data analytics for law enforcement agencies. AIDA will develop a Big Data Analysis and Analytics framework equipped with a complete set of effective, efficient, and automated data mining and analytics solutions to deal with standardised investigative workflows, extensive content acquisition, information extraction and fusion, knowledge management

and enrichment through novel applications of Big Data processing, Machine Learning, AI, and predictive and visual analytics. It will do so in a way that ensures societal benefits and consequences are an integral part of design and deployment efforts, (https://www.project-aida.eu/).

- **THORN**: Build technology to defend children from sexual abuse. It now houses the first engineering and data science team focused solely on developing new technologies to combat online child sexual abuse, (https://www.thorn.org/).
- **ANITA**: Advanced Tools for Fighting online illegal trafficking. ANITA aims to enhance the investigative capabilities of LEAs by delivering tools and techniques to efficiently address the illegal online trafficking of counterfeit/counterfeit medicines, NPS, drugs and weapons, (https://www.anita-project.eu/).
- LOCARD: Lawful evidence collecting and continuity platform development. LOCARD is a project funded through the European Commission's Horizon 2020 program that would automate the collection of digital evidence in any electronic format and medium. Its goal is to provide a comprehensive management approach to handle digital evidence presented in a court of law, alleviating many issues of current art and practice. LOCARD aims to increase trust in the handling and processing of digital evidence and the management of a chain of custody by providing transparency and using an immutable chain of custody stored with blockchain technology, (https://locard.eu/).
- **AVIATOR**: Augmented Visual Intelligence and Targeted Online Research, is an efficient tool that helps classify and prioritise all aspects of NCMEC reports. In addition, AviaTor can automatically crawl online sources for additional information for investigations in accordance with the national legal requirements, (https://aviatorproject.com/).

The HEROES website contains links all of the above mentioned projects. These tasks are also implemented by the respective projects to obtain correlations between dissemination activities. Some technical information was shared with these projects, as well as discussions on best practices and common problems and possible solutions. In addition, joint conferences and events are planned, as well as the use of the Common Dissemination Booster, (https://www.horizonresultsbooster.eu/apply).

3.3.Consortium Partners Contribution

Interaction and communication with all consortium partners and interaction with all WPs are necessary to successfully disseminate the project results.

All partners involved must participate in outreach activities by:

- Providing the contents of their particular work packages: press releases, presentations, articles, publications, etc.
- Informing about dissemination opportunities and awards.
- Participating and presenting the project in relevant events: conferences, workshops, etc.
- Regularly filling out the checklist of planned and carried out dissemination activities.
- Reporting on the dissemination activities carried out.

3.4. Deliverables

HEROES's public deliverables will be published on the project website and will be available for download. All interested parties will, therefore, be kept informed about HEROES results. Partners are responsible for notifying the project coordinator and the WP leader for dissemination in order to publish the deliverables on the website.

So far, they 4 deliverables have already published:

- Communications plan V1.
- Project website



- Data Management Plan V1
- Exploitation plan V1

3.5. Publications

Publications are intended to reach different types of stakeholders. All publications must refer to the project with the following disclaimer: "*This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement n. 101021801.*".

3.6. Scientific Publications

Consortium partners from universities (UCM, UNIKENT, VUB) and research and technology organisations (INRIA, KEMEA, ARC) will lead the preparation of peer-reviewed scientific publications. All the HEROES' researchers will be committed to contribute with papers on international conferences and peer review journals, giving priority to open access options to maximise the dissemination of HEROES research and results.

To ensure and maximise the dissemination of HEROES research and results the communication strategy includes not only the production of papers addressed individually to peer review international journals, but also foresees the development of an international conference focused in all relevant topics addressed in HEROES. The best papers will published in a special issue of a peer-reviewed journal. Priority will be given to openaccess journals, in order to allow the research results spreading internationally.

The scientific publications (publications related to the foreground of the project) will be listed as they are obtained during the project which is shown in Table 1. Among the main dissemination activities, 13 scientific publications stand out, of which 4 were presented at congresses and 9 published in scientific journals

| | | | | | | | | LIST O | F SCIENTIFIC PUBLIC | CATIONS | | | | | | | | |
|---|------------------------|----------------------|---|--|---|---|---------------|---------------|--|--|------------|------------------------|--|----------------------------------|---|-------------------------------------|-----------------------------|----------|
| | Date (DD/M M/YY) | Partner | Publication type (paper in conference, article in journal, books/mon- ographs, chapters in books, the- sis, etc.) | Publication title (website if applicable) | Authors (names) | DOI (Digital Object Identifier) | ISSN | eISSN | Name of jour- nal/ Conference / Workshop | Place of publica- tion / Lo- cation | or equiva- | Rele- vant pages | Supporting document (links toward the article) | Peer/re- view (YES/ NO) | Open Access YES (Green Gold)/ NO | Status (Done/ Planned) | Size of Audi- ence | Comments |
| 1 | 14/7/22 | LAB LATI- TUDE | Paper in con- ference | Towards Sys- tem Security: What a Com- parison of Na- tional Vulner- ability Data- bases Reveals | veira Albuquer- que, Rafael Ti- móteo de Sousa Júnior | 10.23919/CIS T154924.2022 .982 0232 | 2166- 0727 | 2166- 0727 | 2022 17th Iberian Conference on In- formation Systems and Technologies (CISTI) | | IEEE | 1-6 | https://ieeex- plore.ieee.or g/ab- stract/docu- ment/98202 32 | No | Yes | Done | 54 | |
| 2 | 29/8/22 | LAB LATI- TUDE | Paper in con- ference | Cyber Threat Modeling Framework | Renato Carvalho Raposo De Melo, Robson De Oliveira Al- buquerque, Fá- bio Lúcio Lopes De Mendonça | 10.23919/CIS T154924.2022 .986 6890 | 2166- 0727 | 2166- 0727 | 2022 17th Iberian Conference on In- formation Systems and Technologies (CISTI) | | IEEE | 1-7 | https://ieeex- plore.ieee.or g/ab- stract/docu- ment/98668 90 | No | Yes | Done | 12 | |
| 3 | 00/00/2022 | LAB LATI- TUDE | Paper in con- ference | REVS: A Vul- nerability Ranking Tool for Enterprise Security | Robson de Oli- veira Albuquer- | 10.5220/0011 06860000317 9 | 2184- 4992 | | In Proceedings of the 24th Interna- tional Confer- ence on Enter- prise Infor- mation Systems (ICEIS 2022) | | ICEIS | 126 - 133 | https://www.r esearchgate. net/pro- file/Robson- Albuquer- que/publica- tion/360486 306_REVS_A _Vulnerabil- ity_Rank- ing_Tool_for _Enter- prise_Secu- rity/links/62 7aa7f83a237 44a7273a81 c/REVS-A- Vulnerabil- ity-Ranking- | No | Yes | Done | | |

Table 1: List of Scientific Publications.



| | | | | | | | | | | | Tool-for-En- terprise-Se- | | | | | |
|---|------------|------------------------------|-------------------------|--|---|---------------------------------------|---------------|--|-----------|---------------|--|----|-----|------|---|--|
| 4 | 21/3/22 | UCM/L AB LATI- TUDE | Article in jour- | A Model for the Definition, Prioritization and Optimiza- tion of Indica- tors | Frederico Viana Almeida, Edna Dias Canedo, Rob- son de Oli- veira Albu- querque, Flá- vio Elias Go- mes de Deus, Ana Lucila Sandoval Orozco, Luis Javier García Villalba | 10.3390/elec- tron- ics11060967 | 2079- 9292 | Electronics | MDPI | 1-29 | curity.pdf https://www. mdpi.com/2 079- 9292/11/6/9 67 | No | Yes | Done | | |
| 5 | 00/03/2022 | LAB LATI- TUDE | Article in jour- nal | Outcome of sex determi- nation from ulnar and ra- dial ridge densities of Brazilians' fingerprints: Applying an existing method to a new popula- tion | Danielda Silva Carvalho, Marcos Mar- tinhoViana de Alecrimb, Ra- fael Timóteode Sousa Júniorc, Luiz An- tônioRibeiro Júniord | 10.1016/j.scij us.2022.01.00 5 | | Journal of Infor- mation Security and Applications | ELSEVIER | 181- 192 | https://www.s ciencedi- rect.com/sci- ence/arti- cle/pii/S135 5030622000 17X?casa_to ken=kq6cHR - nzdMAAAAA :cZRb5npqL GLUD_L2CTk 4tPNQqkKzz 8YOUZqtTVH vy-gEne- aOBSs1otz00 dfnpfZeDUfU WIMiRA | No | Yes | Done | | |
| 6 | 4/2/22 | LAB LATI- TUDE | Article in jour- nal | On the me- chanical properties and fracture patterns of the non- benzenoid carbon allo- trope (bi- phenylene network): a reactive molecular dynamics study | M. L. Pereira Júnior, W. F. da Cunha, R. T. de Sousa, Junior, G. D. Amvame Nze, D. S. Galvão, L. A. Ribeiro Júnior | 10.1039/D1N R07959J | | Nanoscale | Nanoscale | 3200- 3211 | https://pubs.r sc.org/en/co ntent/arti- clel- anding/2022 /nr/d1nr079 59j/unauth | No | Yes | Done | 4 | |



| 7 | 30/3/22 | LAB LATI- TUDE | Article in jour- nal | Sex determi- nation from distal and proximal ridge densities of Brazilians' fingerprints | Daniel da Silva Carvalho, Marcos Mar- tinho Viana de Alecrim, Ber- nardo José Munhoz Lobo, Ramon Santos Fernandez, Alessandro Mendes Soa- res Evange- lista, Clauber Franco Mi- randa, Luiz Antonio Ri- beiro Junior, Rafael Timó- teo de Sousa | 10.33448/rsd- v11i5.28057 | 2525- 3409 | | RESEARCH, SO- CIETY AND DE- VELOPMENT | Rsdjournal | | https://rsdjou rnal.org/in- dex.php/rsd/ arti- cle/view/280 57 | No | Yes | Done | | |
|---|---------|----------------------|-------------------------|--|---|-----------------------------------|---------------|---------------|--|------------|-------|--|----|-----|------|-----|--|
| 8 | 5/4/22 | UCM | Article in jour- nal | Natural Lan- guage Pro- cessing Ap- plied to Forensics Infor- mation Extraction With Trans- formers and Graph Visualiza- tion | Fillipe Barros Rodrigues, Wi- lliam Ferreira Giozza, Robson de Oliveira Al- buquerque, Luis Javier García Vi- llalba | 10.1109/TCS S.2022.31596 77 | | 2329- 924X | IEEE Transactions on Computa- tional Social Systems | IEEE | 1-17 | https://ieeex- plore.ieee.or g/ab- stract/docu- ment/97497 87?casa_to- ken=RI- JEoixe6m8A AAAA:F59bY EM8iPk7do2 3a4qqhoq- MjRt_Od2k4 cdN88sSeT- jdKKQ7kRc- ogN3sFk51ss Gyks7qTsP6 | No | Yes | Done | 112 | |
| 9 | 13/9/22 | UCM/U NI- KENT | Article in jour- nal | Sensitivity and uniformity in statistical ran- domness tests | Elena Almaraz Luengo, Mar- cos Leiva Cerna, Luis Ja- vier García Vi- llalba, Darren Hurley Smith, Julio Hernan- dez Castro | 10.1016/j.jisa. 2022.103322 | 2214- 2126 | | Journal of Infor- mation Security and Applications | ELSEVIER | 10332 | A https://www.s ciencedi- rect.com/sci- ence/arti- cle/pii/S221 4212622001 685?casa_to ken=035TXY 50XE0AAAA A:whn1PPqjz g1-K41S5vI- oaGq5UKyW qXQCKEfaV- pEWYiA0mm | No | Yes | Done | | |



| | | | | | | | | | | | 1_fMdJEc- DTXIhviG- PgnB_3tE3wi Q | | | | |
|----|-----------|-----|------------|---|---|---|--|---|---------------------|-----------------|---|-----|-----|------|--|
| 10 | 26/6/2022 | ARC | Conference | Topic model- ing ap- proaches to counter online grooming | Nikolaos Lykousas , Constantinos Patsakis | https://doi.org/ 10.1145/3501 247.3539507 | | WebSci '22: 14th ACM Web Sci- ence Conference | Barcelona, Spain | ACM | https://www.r esearchgate. net/publica- tion/361551 971_Topic_ model- ing_ap- proaches_to _coun- ter_online_g rooming | Yes | Yes | Done | |
| 11 | To appear | ARC | Journal | SoK: Cross- border Crimi- nal Investiga- tions and Digi- tal Evidence | Fran Casino, Claudia Pina, Pablo López- Aguilar, Edgar Batista, Agusti Solanas, Cons- tantinos Patsa- kis | https://doi.org/ 10.48550/arXi • v.2205.12911 | | Journal of Cyber- security (Oxford) | | Oxford Press | https://doi.or g/10.48550/ arXiv.2205. 12911 | Yes | Yes | Done | |
| 12 | 24/2/2022 | ARC | Journal | Research Trends, Chal- lenges, and Emerging Topics in Dig- ital Forensics: A Review of Reviews | Casino, Fran and Dasaklis, Thomas K and Spathoulas, George and Anagnos- topoulos, Mar- ios and Ghosal, Am- rita and Borocz, Istvan and Solanas, Agusti and Conti, Mauro and Patsakis, Constantinos | 10.1109/AC- CESS.2022.3 154059 | | IEEE Access | | IEEE | 10.1109/AC- CESS.2022. 3154059 | Yes | Yes | Done | |



| 13 | 2/7/2022 | ARC | Journal | On the effec- tiveness of bi- nary emula- tion in mal- ware classifi- cation | Casino, and | https://doi.org/ 10.1016/j.jisa. 2022.103258 | | | Journal of Infor- mation Security and Applications | Elsevier | | https://doi.org/ 10.1016/j.jis a.2022.1032 58 | Yes | Yes | Done | |
|----|----------|------------------------------|---------|--|---|--|---------------|---------------|--|----------|---------------|--|-----|-----|------|--|
| 14 | 01/02/22 | UCM | Journal | Analysis of MP4 Videos in 5G Using SDN | García Vi- llalba, Luis Javier and Fernández, Jesús Antonio Puente and Orozco, Ana Lucila Sando- val | 10.1109/TIT S.2022.3143 159 | 1524- 9050 | 1558- 0016 | IEEE Transac- tions on Intelli- gent Transporta- tion Systems | IEEE | 2668- 2677 | https://ieeex- plore.ieee.o rg/ab- stract/docu- ment/9700 780?casa_t oken=lsv_e EAYcJYA AAAA:C1- TjRn14CZ X6czSpben 6keczJkR3f - aGdWYe1 DRYBdqrk rfftow_sFB yze7FMW Rtox- RbZ3KGy NZ | Yes | Yes | Done | |
| 15 | 24/01/22 | UCM/L AB LATI- TUDE | Journal | Methodologi- cal Frame- work to Col- lect, Process, Analyze and Visualize Cyber Threat Intelligence Data | Lucas José Borges Amaro, Bruce Wi- Iliam Percilio Azevedo, Fa- bio Lucio Lo- pes de Men- donca, Wi- Iliam Ferreira Giozza, Rob- son de Oli- veira Albu- querque and Luis Javier García Vi- Ilalba 2 | https://doi.or g/10.3390/ap p12031205 | | | Applied Sciences | MDPI | 1205 | https://www. mdpi.com/ 2076- 3417/12/3/ 1205 | Yes | Yes | Done | |

| HER |
|-----|
|-----|

| 16 07/07/22 | UCM | Journal | FASSVid: Fast and Ac- curate Se- mantic Seg- mentation for Video Se- quences | Hector Perez- Meana, Pablo Velarde-Al- varado, Ana Lucila Sando- val Orozco and Luis Ja- | https://doi.or g/10.3390/c2 4070942 | Entropy | MDPI | 942 | https://www. mdpi.com/ 1099- 4300/24/7/ 942 | Yes | Yes | Done | 07/07/22 | UCM/IPN |
|-------------|-----|---------|--|--|---|---------|------|-----|---|-----|-----|------|----------|---------|
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

3.7. Events and Conferences

Partners are participating in external events and conferences relevant to the project to:

- Present the project and its results to relevant audiences.
- Promote the project.
- Increase project visibility.
- Establish new contacts.

Through the participation in events of the members of the HEROES consortium, points of view and feedback can be exchanged with professionals. These are an important communication channel to provide general information about the project, as well as to promote the progress of HEROES. In addition, they are an important channel to interact with the academic community.

Table 2 and 3 show the dissemination events in which the project partners have participated and those that HEROES has organized during Y1, the partners have participated in 18 dissemination events where they make the HEROES project known to interested sectors of society and the HEROES partners have organized 7 events. In Table 3 List of other dissemination activities (websites/applications, press releases, brochures, articles published in the popular press, videos, press conferences, presentations, theses, interviews, films, TV clips, posters, etc.). Likewise, there are events such as meetings, social networks, workshops, conferences, and training, giving a total of 33 events.

Table 2: List of Dissemination Events.

| LIST OF | DISSE | MINATI | ON | EVENTS |
|---------|-------|--------|----|---------------|
|---------|-------|--------|----|---------------|

| | Note: When j | possible/availab | le, partners are enc | ouraged to upl | oad supportin | g documents on repository HEROES | -FCT/WP10-Disse the repo | | oloration/Diss | emination M | aterial and add a | a link on colun | nn N of this documer | nt. Pictures w | ill serve to illustrate |
|---|----------------------------|--|--|---|---|--|---|-------------------------------------|---|--|---|--|---|------------------------------|---|
| | Date (DD/MM/ YY) | Partner | Partner Contri- bution (project presentation, poster, brochure, stand, etc.) | Type of event (conference, fair, seminar, workshop, ex- hibition, etc.) | Event title | Event description (main focus, or- ganizers, topics addressed, periodicity, etc.) | | Place / Loca- tion | Activity (Project presentation, poster, bro- chure, stand, video, etc.) | Countries addressed (national/ in- ternational) | Type of audience (Industry, civil society, policy makers, authori- ties, media, etc.) | Statistics (Number of attendants, countries, etc.) | Supporting docu- ment if relevant (Website, agenda, photos, pictures, article, etc.) Note: Link to re- pository | Status (Done/ Planned) | Comments |
| 1 | 30/6/22 | UCM | Project presenta- tion | Seminar | Projects to Policy Semi- nar (PPS) | ME & REA C2.Improving interaction between research and policy. | Presentation of the HEROES project | Brussels, Bel- gium | Project presentation | International | Policy makers | | | Done | |
| 2 | 21/09/2022 - 24/09/2022 | UCM | Project presenta- tion | Conference | 22nd Annual Conference of the ESC. | European Society of Criminology and Andalusian Interuniversity Institute of Criminology. Challenges and opportu- nities in a virtually and physically connected Europe: The nee for criminology. | | Malaga, Spain | Project presentation | International | | | | Done | |
| 3 | 27/09/2022 - 28/09/2022 | UCM | Project presenta- tion | Conference | Sciences and Humanities Angle of Re- search Pro- jects. | DG HOME to the CERIS Annual Event 2022:Fighting Crime and Ter- rorism and Resilient Infrastructure, dedicated to FCT and INFRA areas. The participants in this panel dis- cussed about the Social Science and Humanities angle in Security research projects. | Presentation of the HEROES project | Brussels, Bel- gium | Project presentation | International | | | | Done | |
| 4 | 28/09/2022 - 30/09/2022 | UCM | Project presenta- tion and a round table | Conference | Interpretation of digital messages | Escuela Judicial del Consejo General del Poder Judicial. Jornada relativa a la directiva 2016/800, relativa a las garantías procesales de los menores sospechosos o acusados en los procesos penales | Presentation of the HEROES project | Santiago de Compostela, Spain | Project presentation | National | | | | Done | |
| 5 | 30.7.2022 | Centre for Women and Children Studie - CWCS | https://www.face- book.com/261 462881316503/vi- deos/11943825 24741255 | Launching the Red Heart Campaign to promote child rights on Online plat- form | Red Heart Campaign to Promote Child Rights | Red Heart Campaign to Promote Child Rights | Objective: To Promote Child Rights for child sexual abuse, ex- ploitation and traf- ficking. | Online plat- form | https://www.f ace- book.com/26 1462 881316503/vi deos/1194382 524741 255 | Online plat- form | INGOs, NGOs, social workers who are work- ing with child rights in Bang- ladesh were in- vited. In addi- tion, HEROES partner organi- zations from other European countries also invited to join the meeting vir- tually. | Number of at- tendants-59 | https://www.face- book.com/Centre- for-Women-and- Children-Studies- CWCS- 261462881316503 /vid- eos/139786746 4031116 | Done | The launching event was sucess- ful and the guest speakers were very resourceful persons |



| 6 | 11.8.2022 | Centre for Women and Children Studies - CWCS | https://www.face- book.com/phot o?fbid=295225582 5067154&set= pcb.295225612173 3791 | Campaign | Red Heart Campaign to Promote Child Rights | Event main focus: "Let us put our hearts together to save children from sexual abuse, exploitation and traffick ing". | Objective: To Promote Child Rights for child sexual abuse, ex- ploitation and traf- ficking. | children stud- ies(CWCS) | https://www.f ace- book.com/ph oto? fbid=2952255 861733817&s et=pcb.2 95225612173 3791 | 92, New Eskaton Road,Dhaka- 1217,Bangla- desh | Centre for Women and Children Stud- ies (CWCS) or- ganized Red Heart Campaign meeting with 16 women rights organizations working at grassroots level at CWCS Con- ference room. | 32 persons from grass- roots level were attended the meeting. | https://www.face- book.com/photo?f bi d=2952255825067 154&set=pcb.2952 2 56121733791 | Done | Women activists offered to organ- ize campaign meetings with children ai their working areas. |
|---|------------|---|--|------------------------|---|---|--|--|---|---|---|--|---|------|--|
| 7 | 30.8.2022 | Centre for Women and Children Studies - CWCS | https://www.face- book.com/phot o?fbid=296738285 3554451&set= pcb.296738389688 7680 | Meeting | lst Stake- holder Meet- ing to Pro- mote Child Rights of Sexually Abused and Exploited Children with INGOs and NGOs | There was a group work followed by a plenary session where each group shared their presentations and pointed out the concept about Child Sexual Abuse, Exploitation and Trafficking. They also introduced the Red Heart Campaign to Promote Child Rights to Save Children from Sexual Abuse, Exploitation and trafficking, share #SaveFACE4Children hashtag and in vite participants to join with activities Campaign badges/buttons will be widely disturbed. Participants and representatives of NGOs/INGOs will be requested to join with movement. Interested organizations can jointly organize meetings with children and youths with us to carry forward the Red Heart Campaign messages. | vulnerability fac- tors to Child Sex- ual Abuse, Exploitation and Trafficking To explore the na- ture of online as- pect of child abuse and exploitation; To assess the legal remedies and gaps in implementa- tion: To share good practices to save | Centre For Women and children stud- ies(CWCS) Conference Room | https://www.f ace- book.com/ph oto/ ?fbid=29673 82853554451 &set=pcb. 29673838968 87680 | 92, New Eskaton Road,Dhaka- 1217,Bangla- desh | 31 INGOs and NGOs from home and abroad who are working with child rights in Bangladesh were invited. In addition, HE- ROES partner organizations from other Eu- ropean countries also invited to join the meeting virtually. | 19 dignitaries from various NGOs and INGOs par- ticipated in the stake- holder meet- ing. | https://www.face- book.com/photo/?f bid=29673828535 54451&set=pcb.29 6 7383896887680 | Done | The stakeholder meeting was so sucessful and shared red heart campaign mes- sages, vision and mission. |
| 8 | 11.10.2022 | Centre for Women and Children Studies - CWCS | https://www.face- book.com/phot o?fbid=300099774 0192962&set= pcb.300100077019 2659 | Stakeholder Meeting | 2nd Stake- holder Meet- ing to Pro- mote Child Rights of Sexually Abused, Ex- ploited and Trafficked Children with young men and women | The meeting started with welcome address, introduction of participants, brief overview of HEROES project and speech by guest speakers, both online and offline. Participants were young men and women in the age group of 19-25 who are engaged in various livelihood activities. The mo- dality of the meeting was a breakup session into 3 groups to Discuss on Challenges regarding Child Sexual Abuse, Exploitation and Trafficking and put forward Action Plans. They also gave presentations in the plenary session followed by Launching the Brief of Red Heart Campaign to Pro- mote Child Rights to Save Children from Sexual Abuse, Exploitation and Trafficking and inviting participants to join our movement. The meeting will | Objective: To identify pre- ventive measures of child sexual abuse, exploitation and trafficking . To discuss about access to child protection for vic- tims . To discuss the is- sue of reintegra- tion of child vic- tims | Women and children stud- ies(CWCS) | https://www.f ace- book.com/ph oto? fbid=3000997 693526300&s et=pcb.3 0010077019 2659 | 92, New Eskaton Road,Dhaka- | Participants were young men and women in the age group of 19-25 who are engaged in vari- ous livelihood activities. | 24 partici- pants were presented in the meeting. | https://www.face- book.com/photo?f bi d=3000997740192 962&set=pcb.3001 0 00770192659 | Done | The participants presented very val- uable practical in- formation and the meeting was very productive. |



Deliverable D10.5

| | | | | | | conclude with a vote of thanks to par- ticipants. | | | | | | | | | |
|----|------------------------|---|--|------------|---|---|--|---|--|---|--|--|---|------|--|
| 9 | 27.10.2022 | Centre for Women and Children Studies - CWCS | https://www.face- book.com/phot o?fbid=301681912 s 5277490&set= pcb.301681976194 4093 | Meeting | 3rd Stake- holder Meet- ing to Pro- mote Child Rights of Sexually Abused, Ex- ploited and Trafficked Children with University Students | The meeting started with welcome ad- dress, Introduction of participants, Brief overview of HEROES project and Speech by Guest Speakers. Ple- nary session where participants will discuss and focus on Issues and Chal- lenges regarding Child Sexual Abuse, Exploitation and Trafficking and put forward Action Plans to reduce and eliminate such crimes and protect the victims. The Advocacy session was short presentation of the Red Heart Campaign to Promote Child Rights to Save Children from Sexual Abuse, Exploitation and Trafficking and in- viting participants to join our move- ment. | Objective: To identify the preventive measures to stop child exploitation To discuss about safety measures against online child exploitation To identify chal- lenges and reme- dies related to child protection "To explore the type of assistance needed for child victims | West Univer- sity Confer- ence Hall | https://www.f ace- book.com/ph oto? fbid=3016819 155277487&s et=pcb.3 01681976194 4093 | East West University ,Dhaka, Bangladesh. | Centre for Women and Children Studies (CWCS) orga- nized a Stake- holder Meeting to Promote Child Rights of Sexually Abused and Ex- ploited Chil- dren. Students were attended the meeting from East West University. | 34 students with 5 faculty members were attended the meeting | d=3016819251944 144&set=pcb.3016 | Done | The students high- lighted the prob- lems faced by them and sug- gested their solu- tions to speed up the meeting. |
| 10 | 21/09/22 - 24/09/22 | Trilateral Re- search | Poster presentation | Conference | 22ND AN- NUAL CONFER- ENCE OF THE EURO- PEAN SO- CIETY OF CRIMINOL- OGY - "CHAL- LENGES AND OP- PORTUNI- TIES IN A VIRTU- ALLY AND PHYSI- CALLY CON- NECTED EUROPE: THE NEED FOR CRIMINOL- OGY" | Focus on Criminology. Organised by The European Society of Criminology (ESC). Annual conferences. | Respond to the needs of current Criminology | Malaga, Spain | Poster presen- tation on the project and case study for D4.4 | International | Researchers, Criminloogiest, LEAs | TBC | https://www.eu- rocrim2022.com | Done | |
| 11 | 13/10/22 | Trilateral Re- search | Panel presentation | Conference | 24-hour Con- ference on Organized Crime - Panel on "Criminal Networks" | Organised by Global Initiative. | Discussing and presenting a di- verse range of top- ics, including en- vironmental crime, corruption, | Online | Presenting case study as part of D4.4 | International | Scholars, practi- tioners | Around 20 people at- tended this panel | https://www.youtu be.com/watch?v= HwDJ6H76b9g | Done | |



| | 1 | | 1 | | -1 | | r | | r | | | | | | |
|----|-------------|----------------|------------------|-----------------------|-------------------------------|--|--|-----------------------|-------------------------------|---------------|-----------------|---------------------------|--|---------|--|
| | | | | | | | human trafficking, illicit trade and | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | counterfeiting, | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | drug trafficking | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | and the impact of | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | the | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | coronavirus pan- | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | demic on orga- | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | nized crime | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | worldwide. | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Promoting quality restorative prac- | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | tice for everyone. | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | This year, our | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | conference ses- | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | sions will focus on | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | one of four areas: | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Restorative | | | | Presenting | | | | https://restora- | | |
| | | | | 0.0 | Justice Coun- | | Restorative re- | | case study as | | | | tivejus- | | |
| 12 | 22/11/22 | Trilateral Re- | Presentation and | Confer- ence/Work- | cil's 4th An- nual Confer- | Organised by Restorative Justice | sponses to inter- personal violence | Online | part of D4.4 | Mainly Na- | Practitioners | Approx. 30 attendees - | tice.org.uk/civicr m/event/info%3Fi | Planned | |
| 12 | 22/11/22 | search | training | shop | ence - Living | Council | Restorative re- | Onine | and provide | tional (UK) | Practitioners | TBC | d%3D593%26re- | Planned | |
| | | | | snop | in Troubled | | sponses to war, or- | | training for | | | ibe | set | | |
| | | | | | Times | | ganised violence | | practitioners | | | | %3D1 | | |
| | | | | | | | and societal | | | | | | - | | |
| | | | | | | | conflict | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | Building commu- | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | nity resilience in | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | troubled times Re- | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | storative practice and social justice | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | and social justice | | Presenting in- | | <u> </u> | | | | |
| | | | | | | | TT 1' 1 | | formation on | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | To discuss how bias risks and dis- | | how bias and | | | | | | |
| | | | | Professional | Discrimina- | International Association of Privacy | crimination are | | discriminai- | | | | | | |
| 13 | 21/9/22 | Trilateral Re- | Presentation | association | tion Risks in | Professionals Northern England | created in AI sys- | Online | ton risks can | UK, US | Data protection | | on file with TRI | Done | |
| 15 | 21,7,22 | search | resentation | seminar | AI-generated | KnowlegeNet Chapter meeting | tems, and how | Guine | be dealt with, | 011,00 | professionals | tendees | 5.1 metu 1101 | Done | |
| | | | | | outcomes | 8tt- | they can be miti- | | using HE- | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | gated | | ROES WP3 as | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | as an example | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | To welcome the | | an enumpre | | | | Because the pho- | | |
| | | | | | | | creation of the | | | | | | tos have bene pub- | | |
| | | | | | | | "Network of na- | | | | Law Enforce- | | lished by the HE- | | |
| | | | | | | Police Conference: Policing in digital | tional correspond- | | | | ment and Policy | | ROES account, I | | |
| | | | | | Policing in | age how new technologies can help | ents of police au- | ouncil of Eu- | | | Makers from | | will let you add | | |
| | 20.20/07/22 | IONES OF | D | 0.0 | the Digital | better policing our modern societies. | thorities", that will | | on the topic | т, | Europe (heads | | them on the NAS | D | |
| 14 | 28-29/06/22 | ICMEC CH | Presentation | Conference | Age Confer- | Organised by the Council of Europe | inter alia encour- | quarters, | of "Online | International | of police and | | (see your publica- | Done | |
| | | | | | ence | Cooperation in Police, and Depriva- | age the sharing of experience and ex- | Strasbourg, France | Child Sexual Exploitation" | | representatives | | tion): | | |
| | | | | | | tion of Liberty Unit. | change of views | France | Exploitation | | from more than | | https://www.linke | | |
| | | | | | | | as regards the | | | | 26 countries) | | din.com/posts/her | | |
| | | | | | | | Council of Europe | | | | | | o es- | | |
| | | | | | | | core values of | | | | | | fct_heroesproject- | | |
| | • | | | | | | | • | | | | | - ** | | |



| | | | | | | human rights, de- mocracy and rule of law (such as procedures for prevention and protection against torture and other forms of illtreat- ment) and to share common knowledge on combating variouss forms of crime (organised crime, terrorism, traffick- ing in human be- | | | | | | cse-csa-activity- 694756873361158 5537- BLXQ?utm_sourc e=share&utm_me- diu m=mem- ber_desktop | |
|----|------------|----------|---------------------------|--|--|--|---------------------------|---|--|--|--|---|---------|
| | | | | | The event focused on building capac- ity of Serbian stakeholders regarding | ings, online sexual exploitation of children, hate speech and rac- ism, cybercrime, domestic violence against women, etc.). | | | | | | | |
| 15 | 5 13/10/22 | ICMEC CH | Project Presenta- tion | VII Interna- tional Con- ference on Child Safety "Safety and Responsibil- ity 2022": An integrated ap- proach in the context of missing chil- dren, sexual exploitation, and related phenomena | on the Internet, Prevention and protec- tion of children from abuse, Trauma in an abused child, and Juvenile delin- quency and social adaptation of chil- dren at risk. The confrence was organised by the Serbian Center for Missing and Ex- ploited Children and the U.S. Em- bassy in Serbia, and was the 7th edi- tion of a yearly event. | law enforcement, government, NGOs, the justice system and other key stakeholders and encourage the utilisation of best practice in Serbia such as the imple- mentation of the AMBER Alert system. | pol, Belgrade, Serbia. | Presentation on the topic of "Victim as- sistance for survivors of sexual exploi- tation and so- lutions for prevention". | Serbia, with regional rele- vance (Bal- kans and Eastern Eu- rope). | Government, Law Enforce- ment, NGOs, Medical Profe- sionals, and all those whose work is related to children's is- sues. | 200 attendees from Serbia, with regional and interna- tional part- ners present from the Bal- kans (Croatia, Greece), Eu- rope (UK) and global (USA). | Video of the presentation to be published online (https://cla- narina.cnzd.rs/edu kacije) | Done |
| 1(|) TBC | ICMEC CH | Project Presenta- tion | Workshop | Trafficking in Persons (TIP) is a hu- man rights violation that continues to be widespread in most parts of the world. While technology is often used by traffickers to target and further ex- ploit victims, it also has an important role to play in preventing human traf- ficking and supporting survivors. The SOLVE Summer Academy 2022 will | The main objective of the SOLVE Summer Academy 2022 is to intro- duce participants to technology- based solutions that can help com- bat human | person and | Presentation on the topic of "The Use of Technol- ogy in Com- bating Traf- ficking in Persons". | Interna- tional | The Academy will be offered as an advanced course that aims to attract practi- tioners and Mas- ter and PhD stu- dents with a strong | ТВС | TBC | Planned |



| | | Trafficking bring together stakeholders such as Microsoft and Rapha International to discuss how anti-trafficking tools can be used to deliver an effective and co- ordinated response. Organisers are RAPHA International and ISCAN, and the event is a side event from the Commission on Crime Prevention and Criminal Justice. trafficking. Mor specifically, ex- ordinated response. Commission on Crime Prevention and Criminal Justice. trafficking. Mor specifically, ex- ordinated response. trafficking. Mor specifically, ex- ordinated response. Commission on Crime Prevention and Criminal Justice. trafficking. Mor specifically, ex- opert-led worksho will focus on the opportunities of technology in the space but also di cuss the risks an ethical aspects the must be consider- when designing tech solutions. During the hands on sessions, parti- ipants will have the opportunity to exchange ideas and prepare post | International Studies S H H H H H H | background a interest in a riety of fields lated to the fi against hum trafficking The partici pants (20-3 will be con posed of iS CAN partne and qualifie applicants | va- ght an 5) | | |
|----|---|--|---|---|------------------------|------|--|
| 17 | 14/6/22 RENACER Presentation Workshop | Regional workshop on good practices in the public sector in co- ordination with NGOs for the pre- vention and protection of victimsIdentification of good practices for the process took place in two mo- ments. Presentations by speakers, including Renacer speaking about the experience of care for victims. Subsequently, working groups were held to develop basic/guide documents to improve care for victims.Identification of good practices for the protec- tion, care and prevention of victims of hu- man traffick- ing.Identification of your the experience of care for victims. documents to improve care for victims.Identification of good practices for the protec- tion, care and prevention of victims.Identification of victims of hu- man traffick- ing.Identification of good practices for the protec- tion, care and prevention of victims.Identification of victims of hu- man traffick- ing.Identification of were held to develop basic/guide documents to improve care for victims.Identification of victims.Identification of victims.Identi | f f Honduras n of - | Presentation of the expe- rience of the founda- tion in care and the con- struction of protective environ- ments where the travel and tourism sec- tor repre- sents a key sector, for which the initiative of the Heroes project is shown as a significant practice in terms of prevention and com- pany bond- ing private defense of children | of 120 people | DONE | |

| Table 3 | 3: List of Organised Events. |
|---------|------------------------------|
|---------|------------------------------|

| | | LIST OF ORGANISED EVENTS | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|----------------------------|--|--|---|--|---|--|--|---|---|---|--|----------------------------------|---|
| | Note: When | possible/avail | able, partners are | e encouraged to | upload suppo | rting documents on reposi | | 10-Dissemination_ the report. | Exploration/Disse | mination Material and | l add a link or | n column M of this do | ocument. Pi | ctures will serve to |
| | Date (DD/MM/Y Y) | Partner | Other partici- pating partners | Type of event (con- ference, fair, seminar, workshop, exhibition, etc.) | Event title | Event description (main focus, organizers, topics addressed, periodicity, etc.) | Objective | Place / Location | Countries ad- dressed (national/inter- national) | Type of audience (Industry, civil soci- ety, policy makers, NGOs, media, etc.) | Statistics (number of attendant, countries, etc.) | Supporting docu- ment if relevant (Website, agenda, photos, pictures, article, etc.) Note: Link to re- pository | Status (Done/ Planne d) | Comments |
| 1 | 15/12/2021 - 16/12/2021 | UCM | | Kick off | HEROES Kick off meeting | The first meeting of the consortium and start of the project car- ried out online | Start of the project | Remote Connec- tion | International | Partners HEROES | 84 | | Done | |
| 2 | 08/06/2022 - 10/06/2022 | UCM | | Meeting | First on-site consortium meeting | Work packages pro- gress review. | Progress review of HE- ROES project | Madrid, Spain | International | Partners HEROES | 28 | | Done | |
| 3 | 30.7.2022 | Centre for Women and Children Studies - CWCS | European Commis- sion(EC) Brussels and Universidad Complutense de Madrid Spain, | Launching the Red Heart Campaign to promote child rights on Online plat- form | Red Heart Campaign to Promote Child Rights | Red Heart Campaign to Promote Child Rights | Objective: To Promote Child Rights for child sexual abuse, exploita- tion and trafficking. | Online platform | Online plat- form | INGOs, NGOs, so- cial workers who are working with child rights in Bangladesh were invited. In ad- dition, HEROES partner organizations from other European countries also invited to join the meeting virtually. | Number of attendants- 59 | https://www.face- book.com/Centre- for-Women-and- Children-Studies- CWCS- 261462881316503 /videos/139786746 4031116 | Done | The launching event was sucessful and the guest speakers were very resourceful perss |
| 4 | 11.8.2022 | Centre for Women and Children Studies - CWCS | European Commis- sion(EC) Brussels and Universidad Complutense de Madrid Spain, | Red Heart Campaign | Red Heart Campaign to Promote Child Rights | Event main focus: "Let us put our hearts to- gether to save children from sexual abuse, ex- ploitation and traffick- ing". | Objective: To Promote Child Rights for child sexual abuse, exploitation and trafficking. | Centre For Women and children stud- ies(CWCS) Conference Room | 92, New Eskaton Road,Dhaka- 1217,Bangla- desh | Centre for Women and Children Studies (CWCS) organized | | https://www.face- book.com/photo?f b id=295225582506 7154&set=pcb.295 2 256121733791 | Done | Women activists offered to organize campaign meetings with children ai their working areas. |



| 5 | 11.10.2022 | Centre for Women and Children Studies - CWCS | European Commis- sion(EC) Brussels and Universidad Complutense de Madrid Spain, | Stakeholder Meeting | 2nd Stake- holder Meeting to Promote Child Rights of Sexually Abused, Ex- ploited and Trafficked Children with young men and women | The meeting started with welcome address, introduction of partici- pants, brief overview of HEROES project and speech by guest speakers, both online and offline. Partici- pants were young men and women in the age group of 19- 25 who are engaged in various livelihood activities. The modality of the meeting was a breakup session into 3 groups to Discuss on Chal- lenges regarding Child Sexual Abuse, Exploi- tation and Trafficking and put forward Ac- tion Plans. They also gave presentations in the plenary session fol- lowed by Launching the Brief of Red Heart Campaign to Promote Child Rights to Save Children from Sexual Abuse, Exploitation and Trafficking and in- viting participants to join our movement. The meeting will con- clude with a vote of thanks to participants. | Objective: 1. To identify preven- tive measures of child sexual abuse, exploita- tion and trafficking 1. To discuss about ac- cess to child pro- tection for victims 1. To discuss the is- sue of reintegration of child victims | Centre For Women and children stud- ies(CWCS) Conference Room | 92, New Eskaton Road,Dhaka- 1217,Bangla- desh | Participants were young men and women in the age group of 19-25 who are engaged in vari- ous livelihood activi- ties. | pants were presented in | https://www.face- book.com/photo?f b id=300099774019 2962&set=pcb.300 1 000770192659 | Done | The participants presented very val- uable practical in- formation and the meeting was very productive. |
|---|------------|--|--|------------------------|---|---|--|--|---|--|---|---|------|---|
| 6 | 27.10.2022 | Centre for Women and Children Studies - CWCS | European Commis- sion(EC) Brussels and Universidad Complutense de Madrid Spain, | Stakeholder Meeting | 3rd Stake- holder Meeting to Promote Child Rights of Sexually Abused, Ex- ploited and Trafficked Children with Uni- versity Stu- dents | The meeting started with welcome address, Introduction of partici- pants, Brief overview of HEROES project and Speech by Guest Speakers. Plenary ses- sion where participants will discuss and focus on Issues and Chal- lenges regarding Child Sexual Abuse, Exploi- tation and Trafficking and put forward Action Plans to reduce and eliminate such crimes | Objective: To identify the pre- ventive measures to stop child exploita- tion To discuss about safety measures against online child exploitation To identify chal- lenges and remedies related to child protec- tion To explore the type of assistance needed for child | East West Uni- versity Confer- ence Hall | East West Uni- versity ,Dhaka, Bang- ladesh. | Centre for Women and Children Studies (CWCS) organized a Stakeholder Meeting to Promote Child Rights of Sexually Abused and Ex- ploited Children. Students were at- tended the meeting from East West Uni- versity. | 34 students with 5 fac- ulty mem- bers were attended the meeting from East West Uni- versity. | https://www.face- book.com/photo?f b id=301681925194 4144&set=pcb.301 6 819761944093 | Done | The students high- lighted the prob- lems faced by them and suggested their solutions to speed up the meeting. |



| _ | | | | | | and protect the victims. The Advocacy session was short presentation of the Red Heart Cam- paign to Promote Child Rights to Save Chil- dren from Sexual Abuse, Exploitation and Trafficking and in- viting participants to join our movement. | | 20 municipali- | | | | | |
|---|---|----------------------|-------|-------------------|---|---|---|--|-----------|---|-----------------------|------|--|
| | 7 | 01.04- 30.06.2022 | KOPZI | workshops (20) | The Portrait of the Child Predator: How to Recognize the Danger- ous Behav- iour | 20 workshops of 2 hours were organized and performed online by KOPZI | To show the main mo- dus operandi of the | ties in Lithuania: Kaunas, Klai- peda, Siauliai, Kretinga, Zara- sai, Rokiskis, Panevezys, Utena, Ukmerge, Palanga, Visagi- nas, Rietavas, Plunge, Telsiai, Mazeikiai, Tau- rage, Marijam- pole, Prienai, Varena, Druskininkai. | Lithuania | NGOS, municipality officers, parent or- ganizations, teachers | 600 partici- pants | Done | |

Table 4: List of Other Dissemination Events.

| | | | | | LIST | F OF OTHER DISSEMINATION EVENTS | 5 | | | |
|---|------------------------|--|--|------------------------|---|--|--|---|-------------------------------------|---|
| | Date (DD/MM/Y Y) | Partner | Type of activity (website, social networks, bro- chure, poster, video, presen- tation, bilateral meetings, etc.) | Activity title | Activity Description (Brief Description) | Objective | Type of audience size (scientific community, in- dustry, civil society, pol- icy makers / authorities, media, etc.) | Link (if applicable) | Status (Done/ Planned) | Comments |
| 1 | 25.8.2022 | Centre for Women and Chil- dren Studies - CWCS | Social networks | Share Facebook post | Shared a post on Facebook enti- tled "This world needs good heart more than good face" to promote our Red Heart Cam- paign and 7 peoples liked the post. | Objective: To Promote Child Rights for child sexual abuse, exploitation and traf- ficking. | Social Media platform | https://www.face- book.com/2614628813 16503/ pho- tos/a.1232036707592444/ 125056734240604 7/ | Done | It is a good initiative to raise awareness to promote child rights of sexual abused, exploited and trafficked chil- dren. |
| 2 | 18.9 .2022 | Centre for Women and Children Studies - | Meeting at Pan Pacific So- nargaon Hotel, | shop for inter- | The overall objective of the First multi stakeholder workshop is to contribute to enhancing inter- agency cooperation in addressing | der the KOICA-funded coun- | CWCS posted on Facebook ID that Prof. Ishrat Shamim, President CWCS attended the National Multi- | https://www.face- book.com/photo/?fbid= 29956 42404061829&set=a.2 | Done | A very fruitful initiative to raise awareness to pro- mote child rights of sexual abused, exploited and |



| | | CWCS | Dhaka,Bangla- desh; organized by IOM with the support of KOICA. | cooperation to address human trafficking 2022 | human trafficking, particularly among different ministries and key non-government actors in the area of Counter-Trafficking. In the Breakout Session on Challenges and way forward, Prof. Ishrat Shamim participated in the group on Prevention of Human Traffick- ing and she presented on behalf of the group. She discussed on the child trafficking issues, especially the internet induced trafficking where children are most victim- ized online by traffickers in the social media platforms and shared the Red Heart Campaign to Pro- mote Child Rights as one of the prevention action. | enhancing cooperation mechanisms among key actors, particularly insti- tutionalizing the National Anti-Trafficking Author- ity and NRMs. • To enhance cooperation between central level and district level stakeholders • To identify potential areas of col- laboration among different minis- tries an non-government actors to strengthen the counter- trafficking governance framework in Bangladesh | dress human trafficking on 18th September 2022. In | 920871478205589 | | trafficked children. |
|---|-----------|--|---|---|--|---|--|--|------|--|
| 3 | 22.9.2022 | Centre for Women and Children Studies - CWCS | | man Rights Com- mission Sharing Meeting on 22 | Shared the Red Heart Campaign to Promote Child Rights issues in the Human Rights Commission meeting. She highlighted the in- crease of online child sexual abuse, exploitation and trafficking in re- cent times. In Bangladesh, CWCS want to recommend to the Human Rights Commission to create awareness among children about the dangers of online abuse and exploitation and provide them guidelines to protect them- selves from grooming, cyberbul- lying etc. and share the hotline child helpline number for report- ing and redress from such cybercrimes. She also suggested that parents should also be aware of the dan- gers of online child exploitation and how to save children from such criminal activities. | Objective: To share the past ac- | It was noticed by 25 peoples who reacted to this post. | https://www.face- book.com/Centre-for- Women- and-Children- Studies-CWCS- 261462881316503/pho- tos/pcb.12702747771019 70/1270274657101982/ | Done | A very fruitful way to raise awareness to promote child rights for child sexual abuse, exploitation and trafficking among all. |
| 4 | 25.9.2022 | Centre for Women and Children Studies - CWCS | Workshop at BRAC Training | Training of Train- ers (To T) on Pro- tection of Chil- dren Affected by Migration includ- ing Trafficking on | A three member training team com- prising of Prof. Ishrat Shamim, Adv. Farida Yeasmin and Nusrat Sultana from CWCS conducted 3-days | | The training was attended by 27 Additional Superin- tendent of Police. Prof. Shamim, the lead trainer highlighted the adverse ef- fects of social media plat- forms on children who are sexually abused and ex- ploited by perpetrators. She also informed the police of- ficials about the Red Heart Campaign to Promote | https://www.face- book.com/photo/?fbid= 29856 39931728743&set=pcb. 2985640451728691 | Done | Discussions on child rights for child sexual abuse, ex- ploitation and trafficking with 27 Additional Super- intendent yielded important information. |

| | | | social media platforms on chil- dren who are sexually abused and exploited by perpetrators. The police officials also shared their varied field experiences and the challenges in investigation and prosecution' especially in the protection of child rights in such cases. She also informed the po- lice officials about the Red Heart Campaign to Promote Child Rights and invited them to join the movement to save children from child abuse, exploitation and trafficking. Police officials showed interest to join our en- | | Child Rights and invited them to join the movement to save children from child abuse, exploitation and traf- ficking. About 38 persons reacted and 2 also shared this post. | | | |
|---|--|--|---|---|--|--|------|--|
| 5 | 23.10.2022 Wome Chil Stud | tre for nen and Meeting at Pre ildren Club,Dhaka, idies - Bangladesh WCS | | Objective: To Promote Child Rights of sexually abused, ex- ploited and trafficked children. | The meeting was attended by 43 media personnel, both print and online news media. On Facebook this post had 120 likes 9 comments and 3 persons shared. | https://www.face- book.com/photo?fbid=3 01018 9729273763&set=pcb.3 010190422607027 | Done | A good opportunity to share the Red Heart Campaign with media personel. |
| 6 | 31.10.2022 for+C 16 W and C dren ies | entre C16:K Vomen Chil- Stud- es - WCS | The meeting of UN Special Rap- porteur on Traf- ficking in Per- sons, especially women and chil- dren, Ms. Si- obhan Mullally with Counter | Objective: To Promote Child Rights of sexually abused, exploited and trafficked children. | As a member of the CTIP- TWG, Prof. Ishrat Shamim attended the above meeting on 30th July 2022. About 119 Facebook friends liked this post and 8 persons com- mented and gave best wishes. | https://www.face- book.com/photo?fbid=3 01833 8421792227&set=pcb.3 018338488458887 | Done | A very fruitful way to share the Red Heart Campaingn with the UN Special Rappor- teur on Trafficking in Per- sons, especially women and children, |



| | | | | | and badges of the Red Heart Cam- paign were presented to the UN TIP Special Rapporteur and her associate. The UN TIP Special Rapporteur appreciated the initiative of the campaign and agreed that she would recommend on ways to keep children safe online. | | | | | |
|----|------------|------------------------|---|---|--|---|--|--|---------|---|
| 7 | 11/7/22 | ESMIR | TRAINING | "Inteligencia en Investigaciones Policiales" | Training for LEA (20 trainees) in the INCIBE (Spain) | Training and focusing on the skills and resources for tackling cy- bercrime, including CSE/CSA and THB | LEA | https://www.in- cibe.es/summer- boot- camp/sbc2022/ponen- tes/pablo-fernandez- lopez | Done | HEROES as an opportunity to enhance the tools at LEAs disposal for tackling THB and CSA/CSE |
| 8 | TBC | ESMIR | Website | Media press re- lease in www.policia.es | Release on the participation of the National Police in Horizon 2020 and Horizon Europe projects | Rising awareness on how Policia Nacional is involved in innovation | Media, society | TBC | Planned | HEROES as an example of those projects |
| 9 | TBC | ESMIR | Social networks | Tweet in @policia | Release on the participation of the National Police in Horizon 2020 and Horizon Europe projects | Rising awareness on how Policia Nacional is involved in innovation | Media, society | TBC | Planned | HEROES as an example of those projects |
| 10 | TBC | ESMIR | Intranet | HORIZON EU- ROPE IN POLICIA NACIONAL | Release on the participation of the National Police in Horizon 2020 and Horizon Europe projects | Rising awareness between mem- bers on how to participate in pro- jects, and the importance of being in- volved in innovation | Media, society | TBC | Planned | HEROES as an example of those projects |
| 11 | 00/07/2022 | Hellenic Police | Official website of Hellenic Po- lice | | Publication of HEROES project in Hellenic Police website HORIZON banner. There is hyperlink with HEROES website, twitter and linkedin. | Dissemination of HEROES objec- tives, activities and dissemination platforms (website, twitter and linkedin) | LEAS, General Public | http://www.astyno- mia.gr/index.php?op- tion=ozo _content⟨=&per- form=view&id=111 130&Ite mid=0⟨=EN | Done | |
| 12 | 26/10/22 | Trilateral Research | Blog post | Blog titled "Case Study on County Lines drug traf- ficking and Cuck- ooing in the UK" | Blog post on Trilateral's website | Summary of case study for D4.4 and flagging HEROES as funding organisation | Mixed - AI/Tech scene & social researchers | https://trilateralre- search.com/research- highlights/case-study-on- county-lines-drug- traf- ficking-and-cuckoo- ing-in-the-uk | Done | |
| 13 | | Trilateral Research | Blog post | TBC | Blog post on Trilateral's website | Report on findings from the Eu- rocrim conference and flagging HEROES as funding organisation | Mixed - AI/Tech scene & social researchers | TBC | Planned | Will be posted first week of November |
| 14 | April | KEMEA | Information Sheet | HEROES Question- naire | Dissemination of Questionnaires for the HEROES D2.1 to partners outside the consortium | To gague opinions of LEAs, NGOs, Public/Private Professionals' opin- ion about good practices and cur- rent gaps in prevention, investiga- tion and victim assistance of THB and CSA/E | LEAs, NGOs, Public/Private Professional (e.g. healthcare practicioner, lawyer, profes- sor) | | Done | This is one of the activities conducted to gather infor- mation for the D2.1 Desktop research from KEMEA. We assume the information sheet given as part of the questionnaires we dissemi- nated to partners outside of the consortium counts as a dissemination activity |
| 15 | Jun 2022 | KEMEA | KEMEA LinkedIn | n/a | Public post with two members of KEMEA who attended the HE- ROES event in Madrid, and | Dissemination of HEROES objec- tives | LEAS, General Public | https://www.linkedin.co m/posts/panayiotispapa nikolaou_children- | Done | |



| | | | | | humantrafficking- childsexualabuse-activity- 6941303337560506368- T7IV/?utm_source=shar e&utm_medium=memb er desktop |
|----|------------|-----------------|--|--|--|
| 16 | 01.09.2022 | KOPZI | website | What is HEROES project?https://anti-trafficking.lt/novel-strat- egies-to-fight-child-sexual-exploita- tion-and-human- trafficking-crimes-and-protect-their- victims-2021m-2024m/IntroductionCommunity inside and out- side Lithuania | ongoing |
| 17 | 1/9/22 | APAV & ICMEC | Bilateral Meet- ing | Bilateral Meeting Bilateral meeting between APAV & ICMEC in order to jointly plan the work to be carried out during W Elopment of tasks unders WP9. Consorcium | https://eur06.safe- links.protection.out- look.com/? url=https%3A%2F%2Fw ww.linkedin.com%2Fpos ts%2Fheroes-fct_heroes- heroesfct-heroesfct-heroes- heroesfct-heroesfct-heroes- heroesfct-heroesfct-heroes- heroesfct-heroesfct-heroes- heroesfct-heroesfct-heroes- heroesfct-heroe |
| 18 | 1/10/22 | APAV | Website - sec- tion dedicated to project HE- ROES | Dissemination of project HEROES Bummary presentation of project HEROES Bummary presentation of project Bummary presentation of presentation of pr | https://apav.pt/pub- liproj/index.php/136- projeto- heroes |


| 19 | 10/11/22 | APAV | Internal Man- agement Meet- ing | Meeting with APAV's Manag- ers of the 75 Community- based Services | Brief presentation of project HEROE's to APAV's Managers o the 75 Community-based Ser- vices, its main objectives and ac- tivities, including a brief context of APAV's expected participa- tion, whilst presenting main ouputs and outcomes of the pro- ject and its added value to potential and/or victims of THB and CSA/CSE | f Engage APAV's Managers in the project | Victim support professionals | n/a | Done | |
|----|----------|------|---------------------------------------|--|--|--|------------------------------------|--|------|--|
| 20 | 9/11/22 | APAV | Social Network | Facebook Post | Dissemination of the project in so- cial media | Widely disseminate the project in APAV's social media networks - main pillars "Prevention, Investi- gation and Victim Assistance", as well as the consortium | APAV's FB followers - | https://eur06.safe- links.protection.out- look.com/? url=https%3A%2F%2Fw Ww.facebook.com%2FAP AV.Portu- gal%2Fposts%2Fpfbid02 xwu69D5gAQd W3J3JG7XWj7r37rDaFT e2KPkNTBn3SdqKe5Dx W 6R3rKax2x3PgQaKl&dat a=05%7C01%7Cmafaldav alerio%40apav.pt%7C02 9674f07702455fc75a08d ac64f1380%7Cc785d60f 85544ce599d709b7e6ce ee66%7C0%7C0%7C638 040340165042686%7CU nknown%7CTWFpbGZsb 3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAw MDAiLCJQI- joiV2luMzliLCJBTil6Ik1 haWwiLCJXVCI6 Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C %7C%7C&sdata=vXDvM KU MsI4Ic%2B%2BaB0GQe 0bxZDZLgOoKgPQO4vr s | Done | |
| 21 | 11/11/22 | APAV | Social Network | Facebook Post | Dissemination of the project in so- cial media | Widely disseminate the project in APAV's social media networks - main pillars "Prevention, Investi- gation and Victim Assistance", as well as the consortium | APAV's FB followers - (132.000) | https://eur06.safe- links.protection.out- look.com/? url=https%3A%2F%2Fw ww.face- book.com%2FAP AV.Portu- gal%2Fposts%2Fpfbid0H zTAmSGaZFj3H ozZDn1yHG5F8RwJUGs daV47E49TpqNmAgzG4 | Done | |

| | - | | | | | | | | | |
|----|----------|---------|---------------|--|---|---|--|---|------|--|
| | | | | | | | | U 1MJNGHSe4YZWX11&d ata=05%7C01%7Cmafald ava- lerio%40apav.pt%7C029 674f07702455fc75a0 8dac64f1380%7Cc785d6 0f85544ce599d709b7e6 ceee66%7C0%7C6 38040340165042686%7C Un- known%7CTWFpbGZsb3 d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjA wMDAiLCJQI- joiV2luMzIiLCJBTil6Ik1 haWwiLCJXVC 16Mn0%3D%7C3000%7 C%7C%7C&sdata=SxOql u 4e55f3vYo3BeOoB%2Bb GEawboXjPU1OC400K9 J M%3D&reserved=0 | | |
| 22 | 9/11/22 | APAV So | ocial Network | Instagram Post | Dissemination of the project in so- cial media | Widely disseminate the project in APAV's social media networks - main pillars "Prevention, Investi- gation and Victim Assistance", as well as the consor- tium | APAV's Instagram follow- ers (22.400) | https://www.insta- gram.com/p/CkwEs- KvLz- A/?igshid=MDJmNzV kMjY%3D | Done | |
| 23 | 11/11/22 | APAV So | ocial Network | Instagram Post | Dissemination of the project in so- cial media | Widely disseminate the project in APAV's social media networks - main pillars "Prevention, Investi- gation and Victim Assistance", as well as the consortium | APAV's Instagram follow- ers (22.400) | APAV no Instagram: "O consórcio HEROES é constituído por 27 en- tidades parceiras entre as quais se encontram universidades, empresas tecnológicas e pequenas e" | Done | |
| 24 | 23/6/22 | RENACER | Meeting | | presentation of the project as part of the dissemination strategy and linkage of key stakeholders | present the project as prevention devel- opment actions in the tourism sector with partners historically linked to pre- vention processes | amazon tourism secretary | | Done | |
| 25 | 30/6/22 | RENACER | | socialization of the north santander sec- retary of tourism project | presentation of the project as part of the dissemination strategy and linkage of key stakeholders | present the project as prevention devel- opment actions in the tourism sector with partners historically linked to pre- vention processes | secretary of tourism north of santander | | Done | |
| 26 | 5/7/22 | RENACER | | socialization of the | presentation of the project as part of the dissemination strategy and linkage of key stakeholders | present the project as prevention devel- opment actions in the tourism sector with partners historically linked to pre- vention processes | guajira tourism secretary | | Done | |
| 27 | 14/9/22 | RENACER | Meeting | socialization of the project to partners albasud (catalan | project presentation | socialize the actions that we have taken as signatories of the berlin declaration to make tourism an area of sustainable | albasud representatives | | Done | |



| | | | | association special- | | development | | | | |
|----|----------|---------|--------------|--|---|---|---|---|------|--|
| | | | | ized in research and communication for development founded in barce- lona in 2002) | | | | | | |
| 28 | 6/10/22 | RENACER | Meeting | training for trainers. | articulation between icbf, secretariat of education fgn and renacer foundation | develop strengthening of competences in teachers for the prevention of the crime of trafficking and sexual exploi- tation and the activation of routes and the school alert system. | educators from educational in- stitutions in the city of bogota. (suba) | | Done | |
| 29 | 24/10/22 | RENACER | Meeting | link to a private sec- tor company to the heroes project - sacsa (cartagena air- port consortium company) | presentation of the project and link to it | the project is presented and invited to engage in it from the perspective of the role of a key partner in the process of awareness and prevention of traffick- ing and the csa | head of social management | | Done | |
| 30 | 24/10/22 | RENACER | Meeting | link to a private sector company to the heroes project (uber colombia) | presentation of the project and link to it | the project is presented and invited to engage in it from the perspective of the role of a key partner in the process of awareness and prevention of traf- ficking and the csa | public security representative - public affairs representative - social management | | Done | |
| 31 | 10/11/22 | RENACER | Meeting | training for trainers. | articulation between icbf, secretariat of education fgn and renacer foundation | develop strengthening of competences in teachers for the prevention of the crime of trafficking and sexual exploi- tation and the activation of routes and the school alert system. | educators of educational insti- tutions of the city of bogota. (engativa) | | Done | |
| 32 | 15/11/22 | RENACER | Meeting | link to a private sector company to the heroes project (avianca - unodc - attorney general of the nation) | presentation of the project and link to it | the project is presented and invited to engage in it from the perspective of the role of a key partner in the process of awareness and prevention of traf- ficking and the csa | social management coordina- tion avianca - representative of the futuro colombia prevention program of the national attor- ney general - unodc representa- tives | | Done | |
| 33 | 8/11/22 | ARC | presentation | Fighting Next Gen- eration Cybercrime with a Holistic Per- spective | A talk describing the current state of practice towards fighting cybercrime was delivered in the Faculty of Infor- mation Technology of the Brno Uni- versity of Technology , along with re- search activities of Fran Casino, in- cluding projects. The HEROES pro- ject was discussed an introduced to the audience | Dissemination, Engagement, Commu- nication | Scientific | The talk was announced in different social media, for example in https://www.face- book.com/FIT.VUT/posts/ 631131045392405 | Done | The talk can be shared but since it is partially related to HEROES, it will be only done by demand. |

3.8. News

Partners are invited to share news of the project within their network of contacts, as well as to share results and relevant events (at local and international levels) on their university website. Participating in large associations in the project will ensure wide dissemination of the project. The main objective will be to publicise the project and its main initiatives to a large, interested audience.

Each news must include:

- Basic information about the Project.
- Key information about the results achieved or the events to be promoted.
- Useful contacts and resources.

The following news have been published so far:

• Press eléase published on February 03, 2022, by the newspaper "El País", by Patricia Peiró, "Un equipo en la universidad contra los monstruos pedófilos ocultos en las redes" (Figure 5).

| Edición: M | EL PAÍS | IÓN 👻 |
|------------|---|-------|
| | Madrid comunidad de madrid · avuntamiento de madrid · cercanías · metro · emt · madrid central · últimas noticias | |
| | Un equipo en la universidad contra los monstruos pedófilos ocultos en las redes | |
| | Un grupo de investigadores de la Complutense lidera un proyecto de siete millones de euros con 21 organizaciones en todo el mundo para luchar contra la pederastia y la trata en internet | |

Figure 5: Press release El País.

• Publication in the press eléase "Un grupo de investigadores de la Complutense lidera un proyecto con 27 organizaciones en todo el mundo para luchar contra la pederastia y la trata en internet", published on the home page of Universidad Complutense de Madrid (UCM) on February 7, 2022 (Figure 6).



Figure 6: Publication on the main page of the UCM.

 Interview on "play radio, radio 5" published on February 9, 2022, "La UCM, al frente de un proyecto europeo contra la trata" (Figure 7).



Figure 7: Radio 5 interview.

• Publication "*La UCM coordina HEROES, proyecto internacional para luchar contra la pederastia y la trata en Internet*", published on the main page of the Universidad Complutense de Madrid (UCM) on June 11, 2022 (Figure 8).

La UCM coordina HEROES, proyecto internacional para luchar contra la pederastia y la trata en Internet

Texto: Jaime Fernández, Fotografía: Jesús de Miguel - 11 jun 2022 11:18 <u>CET</u>

f 9 🛛 🕒

La Facultad de Derecho ha acogido la primera reunión presencial del proyecto HEROES, liderado por la Universidad Complutense, y que reúne a otras 26 organizaciones europeas, asiáticas y americanas para luchar contra la pederastia y la trata en Internet. En este trabajo participan investigadores complutenses de las Facultades de Ciencias Económicas y Empresariales, Ciencias Matemáticas, Ciencias Políticas y Sociología, Derecho, Estudios Estadísticos, Filología, Informática y Trabajo Social, coordinados por el profesor Luis Javier García Villalba, director del <u>Grupo de Análisis, Seguridad y Sistemas (GASS) de la UCM</u>.

Figure 8: Publication in page of the UCM.

3.9.Website

The Website is one of the most effective sources of dissemination. It allows communication with the general public, as well as communication between the consortium, giving accurate and concise information on the standing of the project and enabling a greater scope of dissemination. The URL of the project website is "https://www.heroes-fct.eu".

The project website will act as a dissemination centre, central repository, and dissemination channel for news on public information. It will contain documents and dissemination material produced as part of the HEROES project, such as press releases, project brochure, newsletters, and a project fact sheet, etc. The website will be continuously updated throughout the project, thus pertaining timely information for interested parties. The website will also serve as a platform to constantly publish news and publications targeted to key stakeholders, involving them both in content and in HEROES' objectives.

The design of the website includes the following sections available in English, Spanish, German, French and Portuguese languages and has a total of 12,096 views in RP1.

• Home" page, showing a summary of all sections of the website and a brief presentation of the HE-ROES project (Figure 9).



• "Project" page: relevant information on the project, like Work plan, Project Impact and deliverables (Figure 10).

HERDES

Deliverable D10.5





• "Consortium" page: a description of the project partners is made showing their logos and direct links to their official websites (Figure 11).





Figure 11: Consortium page.

• The "Sister Projects" page showing projects linked to or related with HEROES (Figure 12).



Figure 12: Sister Projects.

• "News" page: Information about project news presented on television and press releases is shown, including mentions to events that wounded with HEROES participation and a downloadable file of the project Newsletters (Figure 13).



Figure 13: News page.

• The "Contact" page, displaying contact information for the HEROES project (Figure 14).



Figure 14: Contact page.

3.10. HEROES Visual Identity

For the elaboration of the visual elements of creative use of the HEROES project, the "HEROES Visual Identity" document was created. This document provides a guide for the production of the project's dissemination materials, as well as information on logos, colours, fonts of the project, etc., and instructions on how to use them. Guidelines for referencing the project on social media and other digital media are also mentioned.

This document was distributed, via email, to all members of the HEROES consortium (Figure 15).



Figure 15: Document HEROES Visual Identity.

3.10.1. Project Logo

The project logo is one of the essential elements of the project's identity. Its main purpose is to directly and effectively represent the core message of the project. whilst stimulating dissemination and provide an opportunity to promote results.

HEROES logo shall be part of all dissemination, communication (internal and external) and exploitation activities, as well as included in all promotion materials, documentation, websites, etc.

For the representation of the HEROES project, the design of the letters was created with the font type called "**Calibri Bold**" which is the acronym of the full name of the project "Novel Strategies to FigHt Child Sexual Abus**E** and Human T**R**afficking Crimes and Pr**O**tect th**E**ir Victim**S**". The letter "**O**" was modified by a drawing that shows three people embracing each other, representing union and protection, as can be seen in Figures 16 and 17.



HEROES

Figure 16: Logo letters design.



Figure 17: Letter design.

Subsequently, the two designs were combined, resulting in the logo that represents the HEROES project, Figure 18.



Figure 18: Logo HEROES.

The logo uses the following colour palette (Figure 19). The colours can be used in documents, files, etc., that form part of the project. Each colour has been chosen based on the messages, values and ideals that this project aims to embody: the blue colour represents peace, hope, and tranquillity, while the green colour represents stability, hope and family.



Figure 19: Palette colors.

3.10.2. Social Media

Social media platforms are great communication channels to reach a broad group of target audiences. Not only do they allow for a wide dissemination of HEROES, as they encourage the creation of a two-way collaborative community of stakeholders. Social media is a very dynamic environment and one of the most popular and

fastest ways to promote the project and improve its visibility. These communication channels provide access to content at any time on any digital device.

To increase the visibility and communication commitment of the HEROES project, social networks will be used to share relevant information, as well as news and articles of public interest by using the main information channels, including Twitter and LinkedIn.

• **Twitter**: It is available through the user **@heroes_fct**. This social network is used to keep followers updated on HEROES consortium events and activities, published deliverables, and other project information updates. Today the channel has 88 followers (Figures 20 and 21).

| ÷ | HEROES 48 Tweets |
|------------------------|--|
| P _{HE} | Novel Strategies to Fight Child Sexual Exploitation and Human Trafficking Crimes and Protect their Victims |
| HER @hero | |
| | ROES has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 Research novation Programme under grant agreement No 101021801. #H2020 esFCT |
| 🖨 Sci | ence & Technology 🛈 🖾 Joined October 2021 |
| 34 Foll | owing 88 Followers |

Figure 20: HEROES Twitter.



Figure 21: HEROES Twitter home page.

• LinkedIn: This social network is used for contact with professionals interested in the themes related with HEROES. It is available through the URL https://linkedin.com/in/heroes-fct, as of today the page has 96 followers and 34 contacts (Figure 22).





3.10.3. Email

Emails are a communication mechanism for creating, sending, and receiving messages through electronic communication systems. Most email systems today use the Internet, with e-mail being one of the most popular uses of the Internet.

Everything related to the project will be communicated through the Gmail address "heroes@ucm.es" with the project partners, including sensitive information.

3.11. Flyer/ Factsheet/ Newsletter

In order to inform a wide range of audiences of HEROES project and improve its visibility, different dissemination materials have been prepared. All dissemination materials contain the HEROES logo, a brief description of the project and a list of partners.

Dissemination materials are published on the project's website and are available for download. They are also distributed at events attended by partners, not only to increase project visibility but also expand our network and contacts.

3.11.1. Flyer

The HEROES flyer was designed to present the objectives, components, and consortium. This brochure was printed in 300 copies and sent to the consortium, so that they could distribute them at each event they participate in. The flyer was also made available in HEROES's website and is available in English, French, Portuguese, German, and Spanish (Figure 23).



Figure 23: Flayer.



3.11.2. Newsletter

There will be a periodic publication of a Newsletter with the latest news about the project. The first Newsletter published aimed at presenting the HEROES project, its objectives and mains activities, as well events held and upcoming ones. The Newsletter is available for download on the main page of HEROES's website, available in English, Spanish, French, German, and Portuguese. (Figure 24).



3.11.3. Roll-Up

For public events in which a face-to-face audience is expected, a Roll-Up was carried out to advertise the HEROES project in which social networks and the website are reported (Figure 25).



Figure 25: HEROES Roll-Up.

3.11.4. Poster

Two styles of the poster were designed for the presentation of the HEROES project: the first in which technical issues of the project tools are detailed, and the second for general use for the information partners want to present about the project. In the posters, the sections can be modified according to the topic required to be presented (Figure 26 and 27).





Novel Strategies to FigHt Child Sexual Exploitation and Human TRafficking Crimes and PrOtect thEir VictimS

HEROES is structured as a comprehensive solution that encompasses three components: **Prevention**, **Investigation** and **Victim Assistance**. HEROES will establish a coordinated contribution with LEAs by developing an appropriate, victim-centred approach that is capable of addressing specific needs and providing protection. Moreover, HEROES will establish new innovative strategies that in the short, medium and long term will improve the way in which LEAs and CSOs carry out criminal investigations, assist rescued victims, and prevent the occurrence of Trafficking of Human Beings (THB) and Child Sexual Abuse and Exploitation (CSA/CSE).

Objectives

Prevention

- To provide a variety of preventive measures to reduce THB and CSA/CSE crimes.
- To reduce the demand of services that may be provided by victims in both legal and illegal sectors.
- To reduce the risk of (re-)offending by better understanding the behaviour of abusers and potential abusers.

Investigation

- ${\it I}$ To address new threats of child abuse and coercion and extortion of victims that have escalated in the last years.

Victim Assistance

- To Develop a set of holistic measures to ensure adequate THB and CSA/CSE victims' protection and assistance
- To develop new approaches to investigate trafficking of human beings and CSA/CSE crimes
- To develop new approaches to mitigate the impact on victims of THB and CSA/CSE and to reduce re-victimisation in the short and long term

Impact





This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under Grant Agreement No. 101021801.

Figure 26: Poster template 1.



Novel Strategies to FigHt Child Sexual Exploitation and Human TRafficking Crimes and PrOtect thEir VictimS

Prevention

Investigation

01

02

About HEROES

HEROES is structured as a comprehensive solution that three components: encompasses Prevention, Investigation and Victim Assistance. HEROES will establish a coordinated contribution with LEAs by developing an appropriate, victim-centred approach that is capable of addressing specific needs and providing protection. Moreover, HEROES will establish new innovative strategies that in the short, medium and long term will improve the way in which LEAs and CSOs carry out criminal investigations, assist rescued victims, and prevent the occurrence of THB and CSA/CSE crimes.

Components

Prevention

Implementing a mixed approach of technology and social action

Investigation

Developing technological tools that cover the most important needs of LEAs: data gathering and analysis while embracing the very technical, ethical and legal challenges unique to fighting THB and CSA/CSE crimes

Victim Assistance

Focusing on prevention and developing technological tools for more effective investigations.



The posters shown below have displayed at events where the HEROES project was presented:

Objectives

The main goal is to use technology to improve the way in which help and support can be provided to victims of Trafficking of Human Beings (THB) and Child Sexual Abuse and Exploitation (CSA/CSE).

- 𝕑 To provide a variety of preventive measures to reduce THB and CSA/CSE crimes.
- ✓ To reduce the demand of services that may be provided by victims in both legal and illegal sectors.
- ✓ To reduce the risk of (re-)offending by better understanding the behaviour of abusers and potential abusers.
- 𝗭 To analyse possible involvement of organised crime groups implicated in THB and CSA/CSE in other crimes.
- 𝗭 To develop new approaches to investigateTHB and CSA/CSE crimes
- ${{\mathscr O}}$ To address new threats of child abuse and coercion and extortion of victims that have escalated in the last years.
- ${\ensuremath{ \ensuremath{ \e$ detect, investigate and bring down open and hidden peer-to-peer networks and websites.
- CSA/CSE victims' protection and assistance.
- ${\it extsf{integral}}$ To develop new approaches to investigate trafficking of human beings and CSA/CSE crimes.
- ♂ To develop new approaches to mitigate the impact on victims of THB and CSA/CSE and to reduce re-victimisation in the short and long term.

└── heroes@ucm.es

🔽 @heroes fct

www.heroes-fct.eu

fm https://linkedin.com/in/heroes-fc



Poster presented by Trilateral Research at the Eurocrim 2022 conference, (https://eurocrim.secure-

platform.com/spain2022/solicitations/8/sessiongallery/schedule/items/689) (Figure 28).



Novel Strategies to FigHt Child Sexual Exploitation and Human TRafficking Crimes and Protect thEir VictimS

About HEROES Impact HEROES is structured as a comprehensive solution that encompasses three components: **Prevention**, **Investigation** and **Victim Assistance**. HEROES will establish a coordinated contribution with LEAs by developing an appropriate, victim-centred approach that is capable of addressing specific needs and providing protection. Moreover, HEROES will establish new innovative strategies that in the short, medium and long term will improve the way in which LEAs and CSOs carry out criminal investigations, assist rescued victims, and prevent the occurrence of Trafficking of Human Beings (THB) and Child Sexual Abuse and Exploitation Improvement of the cooperation between main parties involved, by means of developing an integral and transversal system that is victim-centred, thereby reducing secondary Citizens of THB and CSA/CSE. It will also increase the European community's pe security. The support of international NGOs will be an enormous value to help victims and to tackle THB and CSA/CSE from a global perspective. This partnership will benefit from bidirectional knowledge sharing between researchers and NGOs. NGOs Components s to gather information, analyse multimedia files securely, ers and enhanced training curricula focusing on victim's gations can prove to be more effective. LEAs 1 Prevention Implementing a mixed approach of technology and social action. Objectives Investigation Developing technological tools that cover the most important needs of LEAs: data gathering and analysis while embracing the very technical, ethical and legal challenges unique to fighting THB and CSA/CSE crimes. 2 The main goal is to use technology to improve the way in which help and support can be provided to victims of THB and CSA/CSE. **Consortium partners** 3 Victim Assistance Focusing on prevention and developing technological tools for more effective investigation: 7 LEAs, 5 Technical Partners, and 11 Other Partners.

Case Study – WP 4 Task 4.4

Children and young adults recruited for County Lines drug trafficking – identifying vulnerabilities that put young people at risk as well as the signs a child or young adult is being exploited by County Lines gangs.

Methodology & Objectives of Case Study

search (TRI) conducted a case study assessing the phenomena of County Lines drug traff ng in the UX in relation to Trafficking in Human Beings (THB). This study aimed to iden es that increase a young person's risk of being recruited, and (2) indicators to help fro o spot if children and young adults are involved with County Lines.

We conducted in-depth literature review and 6 interviews with profe (covering Academia, the Housing Sector/Law, LEAs, and City Councils).

County Lines & Cuckooing in the UK – Key Statistics & Definitions

The UK government defines County Lines as "gangs and organised criminal networks involved in drugs into one or more importing areas within the UK using dedicated mobile phone lines or other (frome Office. 2020). Those gangs and organised criminal networks T_{-}) are likely to exp valuerable adults to move and store the drugs and money and they will often use coercion, initi (folduding securit valuence) if where Office. 2020).

stimated that approximately 1,000 different County Lines are ating about £800,000 a year.

hildren are considered to make up most victims groomed to UK County Lines gangs, with numbers growing satisfatdy and significantly over the last years (Figure 1). In tald ,2033 County Lines NRM referrals were flagged in 2027, rereasing by 23% compared to the previous years. Children wolved with criminal gangs such as County Lines are often solidered perpetators rather than viccims by LEAs.

ng refers to the phenomenon of County Lines drug aking over an accommodation located in provincial use them as local drug dealing bases. The term n bis context refers to the cuckoo bird's practice of er nests of other birds.

Both County Lines and Cuckooing overlap with other forms of exploitation and crimes covered under the UK's Modern Slavery Act 2015.

County Lines – Key Vulnerabilities

The study shows that every child and young adult is at risk to be groomed and exploited by CC identified vulnerabilities cover: Age, Gender, Socioeconomic status, Ethnicity/nationality Housing, Health, & Education, Peer relationships, Criminal record, and vulnerabilities COVID-19 pandemic. The study stresses that intersecting vulnerabilities increase risks.

dren growing up in an impoverished and neglected environment appear p It and grooming attempts. The promise of money as well as increased soc

ung person is considered to be more at risk if they suffer from mental health problems o hissue issues, have a physical disability or developmental disorders. In addition, having m mainstream education is thought to be a critical event increasing vulnerability (as v ing at school, etc.).

THB in the UK – Key Statistics & Definitions

In the UK, human trafficking is understood as an element of modern slavery. Modern slavery is defined as 'an umbrello term that covers several different forms of exploitation which can include human trafficing. Jobour exploitation, criminal exploitation, sexual exploitation, and domestic servitude' (HM Government, 2021: p. 11). The 2014 Modern Slavery Strategy and Modern Slavery Act 2015 frame modern slavery in England and Wales.

authorities in England and Wales must refer a potential victim (a child or consenting adult) into the nal Referral Mechanism (NRM). To be considered a victim of human trafficking, the UK government refers three elements of Action, Means, and Purpose of exploitation.

th an increase of 20% compared to the previous year, 12,727 potential victims of modern slavery were referred rough the NRM in 2021. Real numbers are estimated to be much higher. In the most recent quarter, 73% of Mr efferrals were either mon or boys and 21% of the referrals were either women or grist.

slavery in the UK increasingly affects children: In 2021, 43% of referrals to the NRM claimed they had ploited as children. Out of the victims who were minors, 79% were boys and 21% were girls in 2021. were mostly referred as a result of criminal exploitation.

County Lines & Human Trafficking – Links

The Act – Individuals are recruited and may be transported as well as transferred from big cities to small towns where they might be harboured o received at at ran house/cutobed property. Figure 2 shows a poster used by the National Crime Agency (NA) to raise awareness of County Lines – and children going missing.

Means – To recruit individuals over 18 (the aspect of means does not do to be applied for minors), gangs will use some form of cercion, ception, abuse of power, utilisation of the position of vulnerability of the rson to be exploited, and payments or benefits to lure people into gangs to the supervised graners.

The Purpose – Children and adults will be trafficked for the purpose of exploitation for criminal activities, but they are likely to be sexually exploited as well.

County Lines – Indicators

vrs are divided into Act, Means, and Purpose – working along the definition of THB. Understanding if dy is a victim rather than a perpetrator will enable the provision of adequate and much needed mining support.

BNC/

Figure 2: Poster by the NCA (NCA, n.e

- of Action Examples: Is missing frequently from home for short and/or long periods is found to be staying in unsafe accommodations.

mes

- s of Means Examples: Ny having unexplained m ng a huge amount of pho ney and/or owning unexplained and unaffordable items. e calls and/or texts (as a way of controlling the individual)
- ors of Purpose Examples: en change in use of language (using phrases/terms in relation to drug dealing and/or violence) erson is found with suspicious items or committing crimes linked to County Lines/criminal act

Jana-Isabelle Dilger

21 (Accessed 11th of July 2022).

Figure 1: Number of NRM referrals flagged as County Lines, by age group at exploitation and gender (Home Office, 2022).

This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under Grant Agreement No. 101021801.

Dr. Luis Javier García Villalba www.heroes-fct.eu

ort Coon



3.12. Dissemination Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

| Stage | Main Communication Channels |
|--|--|
| 1 – Preliminary Project Promotion (M1 – M12) | Project Website (KPI: at least 1,000 visits). Social Media (KPI: at least 200 followers) Press release (KPI: at least 3 release) Leaflets (KPI: at least 100) Posters (KPI: at least 2) Partners social media channels and websites (KPI: at least 100 visits and 100 followers) Presentations about project scope and objectives at conferences & workshops / presentations at scientific, technical conferences and workshops (KPI: at least 5 such events) |
| 2 – Project Pre-Commercialisation (M12-M30) | Project website (KPI: at least 5,000 visits). Social Media (KPI: at least 1000 followers) Press release (KPI: at least 6 release) Presentations at demonstrations, conferences & workshops (KPI: at least 1000 potential viewers) Collaboration with research projects and international networks (KPI: at least 5 projects and international networks) Journal & conference papers (KPI: at least 5 scientific and technical contributions) organisation of an international conference |
| 3 – Business Strategy (M30 – M36) | Project website (KPI: at least 2000 potential viewers) Social Media (KPI: at least 1000 followers) Press release (KPI: at least 10 release) Presentations at demonstrations, conferences & workshops (KPI: at least 1000 potential viewers) One to one meeting (KPI: at least 20 meetings) Presentations at scientific, technical conferences and workshops Journal & conference papers Final project Brochure (KPI: at least 1000 brochures) |

3.13. Dissemination Guidelines

All dissemination material needs to include the EU emblem and the following acknowledgement:

"This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No. 101021801."

When the EU emblem is displayed together with other logos, it must have appropriate prominence.